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Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Independent Auditors Repart

To the Shareholders of Gulf Lifting Financial Leasing Company (A Closed Joint Stock Company)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Gulf Lifting Financial Leasing Company (“the Company”), which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, comprising significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2020, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other
standards and pronouncements issued by the Saudi Organization for Certified Public Accountants (SOCPA).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the professional
code of conduct and ethics that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS
that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements issued by SOCPA, the
applicable requirements of the Regulations for Companies, Company’s Articles of Association and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those charged with governance, the Board of Directors, are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.

©2021 KPMG Al Fozan & Partners Certified Public Accountants, a registered company in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia, a member firm of the KPMG global organization of independent member firms affiliated
with KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee. All rights reserved.
The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.
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Independent Auditors Report

To the Shareholders of Gulf Lifting Financial Leasing Company (A Closed Joint Stock Company) (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

‘Reasonable assurance’ is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, then we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit of Gulf Lifting Financial Leasing Company (“the Company”).

For KPMG Al Fozan & Partners
Certified Public Accountants

Abdulaziz Abdullah Alnaim
License No: 394

Al Khobar, 4 March 2020G
Corresponding to: 20 Rajab 1442H
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GULF LIFTING FINANCIAL LEASING COMPANY
(CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Saudi Riyals)

31 December

31 December

Note 2020 2019

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Net investment in finance leases 3 58,210,176 56,560,352
Investment 4 892,850 892,850
Intangible assets 5 687,962 790,804
Property and equipment 6 343,882 253,430
Total non-current assets 60,134,870 58,497,436
Current assets
Current portion of net investment in finance leases 3 32,979,873 35,247,500
Prepayments and other receivables 3,006,903 3,848,110
Cash and cash equivalents 7 122,684,153 94,273,112
Total current assets 158,670,929 133,368,722
TOTAL ASSETS 218,805,799 191,866,158
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Share capital 9 100,000,000 100,000,000
Additional equity contribution 90,644,283 90,644,283
Accumulated losses (19,269,466) (2,087,491)
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 171,374,817 188,556,792
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Employees’ end of service benefits 10 229,065 166,848
Deposits from Saudi Central Bank (SAMA) 18.1 23,072,102 -
Total non-current liabilities 23,301,167 166,848
Current liabilities
Trade payables 84,404 577,563
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 11 502,858 373,888
Provision for Zakat 12 1,132,728 900,560
Due to related parties 8 197,078 174,498
Current portion of deposits from Saudi Central Bank
(SAMA) 18.1 19,589,379 -
Advance from customers 2,623,368 1,116,009
Total current liabilities 24,129,815 3,142,518
TOTAL LIABILITIES 47,430,982 3,309,366
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND

LIABILITIES 218,805,799 191,866,158

Director

The accompanying notes from

e findncial statements.



GULF LIFTING FINANCIAL LEASING COMPANY

(CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Saudi Riyals)

INCOME

Income from operations
Finance lease income
Income from other activities
Other income

Total income

EXPENSES

Loss on account of participation to SAMA
deferred payment program

Salaries and other employee related expenses
Legal and professional charges

Rent and related expenses

Depreciation charge

Amortization charge

Provision for investment in finance leases
Other general and administration expenses
[nsurance expense

Total expenses

Profit / (loss) before Zakat

Zakat expense

Profit / (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit

or loss:

- Re-measurement gain / (loss) on defined
benefit plans

Other comprehensive income / (loss) for

the year

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for

the year

Earnings per share — basic and diluted

2
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2020 2019
9,520,635 8,952,213
1,707,172 2,460,166

11,227,807 11,412,379
(4,940,693) “
(5,301,141) (3,760,867)
(1,352,845) (1,057,724)
(560,771) (350,734)
(180,857) (161,517)
(102,842) (182,264)
(14,298,942) (806,989)
(383,372) (1,036,202)
(1,009,719) (676,112)
(28,131,182) (8,032,409)
(16,903,375) 3,379,970
(232,168) 2,417,619
(17,135,543) 5,797,589
(46,432) 5,039
(46,432) 5,039
(17,181,975) 5,802,628
(1.71) 0.58

cutive Officer

to 34 form an integral part of these financial



GULF LIFTING FINANCIAL LEASING COMPANY

(CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

(Expressed in Saudi Riyals)

Balance at 1 January 2019

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 31 December 2019

Balance at 1 January 2020

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive loss for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 31 December 2020

Additional
Share equity Accumulated
capital contribution losses Total
100,000,000 90,644,283 (7,890,119) 182,754,164
- - 5,797,589 5,797,589
- - 5,039 5,039
- - 5,802,628 5,802,628
100,000,000 90,644,283 (2,087,491) 188,556,792
100,000,000 90,644,283 (2,087,491) 188,556,792
- - (17,135,543) (17,135,543)
- - (46,432) (46,432)
- - (17,181,975) (17,181,975)
100,000,000 90,644,283  (19,269,466) 192,148,203

The accompanying notes from 1 to 20 appearing on pages 6 to 34 form an integral part of these
financial statements.




GULF LIFTING FINANCIAL LEASING COMPANY
(CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
(Expressed in Saudi Riyals)

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit / (loss) before Zakat
Adjustments for:

Provision for investment in finance leases

Lease modification loss

Depreciation

Amortization

Employees’ end of service benefits

Gain on account of fair value adjustments for interest
free SAMA deposits, net

Loss on disposal of property and equipment

Changes in:

Net investment in finance leases
Prepayments and other receivables
Due to related parties

Trade payables

Advance from customers

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Cash used in operating activities
Employees’ end of service benefits paid
Zakat paid

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property and equipment
Acquisition of intangible asset

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Deposits received from SAMA
Repayment of deposits to SAMA
Net cash flows from financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalent at end of the year

Note 2020 2019
(16,903,375) 3,379,970
3 14,298,942 806,989
18.2 7,008,424 -
6 180,857 161,517
5 102,842 182,264
10 118,645 90,811
18.2 (2,067,731) -
2,221 -
2,740,825 4,621,551
(20,689,563) (38,895,061)
841,207 (2,920,515)
22,580 63,722
(493,159) 434,086
1,507,359 1,020,895
128,970 (359,708)
(15,941,781) (36,035,030)
10 (102,860) (37,973)
12 - (7,350)
(16,044,641) (36,080,353)
6 (273,530) (2,600)
5 - (881,251)
(273,530) (883,851)
18.1 54,925,001 -
18.1 (10,195,789) -
44,729,212 -
28,411,041 (36,964,204)
94,273,112 131,237,316
7 122,684,153 94,273,112




GULF LIFTING FINANCIAL LEASING COMPANY
(CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
(Expressed in Saudi Riyals)

Note 2020 2019
SUPPLIMENTORY INFORMATION
Non-cash transactions:
Refund of Zakat adjusted to Zakat provision 12 - 3,121,376
Gain on account of fair value adjustments for interest
free SAMA deposits, net 18.2 2,067,731 -
Lease modification loss 18.2 7,008,424 -

The accompanying notes from 1 to 20 appearing on pages from 6 to 34 form an integral part of these financial
statement.
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2.2

2.3

GULF LIFTING FINANCIAL LEASING COMPANY
(CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
(Expressed in Saudi Riyals)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Gulf Lifting Financial Leasing Company (“the Company”) previously known as “Gulf Lifting Rental Company” is
a Saudi Closed Joint Stock Company established under the Regulations for Companies in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia. The Company is registered in Dammam under commercial registration number 2050030896 dated 19
Shaban, 1416H corresponding to 10 January 1996G and operating under company license number 47/A Sh/201708
dated 14 Dhul Qa’dah 1438H corresponding to 6 August 2017G issued by Saudi Central Bank (formerly Saudi
Arabian Monetary Authority) (“SAMA”).

The Company is engaged in the finance leasing business. The Company is effectively a wholly owned subsidiary
of Yusuf Bin Ahmed Kanoo Company Limited.

In 2013, a new Finance Lease Law was enacted in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, whereby, only licensed companies
are allowed to conduct finance lease business in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Accordingly, the shareholders of the
Company (i) filed application with relevant authorities to secure license to conduct finance lease business; (ii)
increased the capital of the Company from SR 40 million to SR 100 million as required by the law; and (iii) resolved
to transfer all the business activities and related assets and liabilities at carrying amount of operating lease business
to a shareholder effective from 1 January 2013. During 2016, the Company received initial approval of the
acceptance of application from the Saudi Central Bank (formerly Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority) (SAMA).

During 2016, the shareholders of the Company resolved to change the name of the Company from Gulf Lifting
Rental Company to Gulf Lifting Financial Leasing Company. Further, the Company was converted from Limited
Liability Company into a Closed Joint Stock Company in accordance with Ministerial Resolution number 287/Q
dated 27 Dhul Qa’dah 1437H, corresponding to 30 August 2016. The legal formalities associated with the change
in name and legal status of the Company were completed during 2016.

In view of the change in legal status, the shareholders also resolved to (i) convert statutory reserve and retained
earnings to additional equity contribution at 30 August 2016 amounting to SR 90.65 million and (ii) transfer the
assets, liabilities and activities of the Company to Closed Joint Stock Company.

The Company has received license from SAMA for practice of finance lease business in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
on 14 Dhul Qa’dah 1438H corresponding 6 August 2017G.

BASIS OF PREPARATION, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Statement of compliance

These financial statements are prepared by the Company in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements issued by
the Saudi Organization for Certified Public Accountants (“SOCPA”).

Basis of measurement

These financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention on the accrual
basis of accounting except for investment which is measured at fair value and employees’ end of service benefits
which is measured at projected unit credit method.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in these financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the Company operates. These financial statements are presented in Saudi Riyals (SR) which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency. All financial information presented in Saudi Riyals has been
rounded to the nearest Riyal, unless otherwise stated.



GULF LIFTING FINANCIAL LEASING COMPANY
(CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
(Expressed in Saudi Riyals)

BASIS OF PREPARATION, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of the Company’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognised
prospectively.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for the year ended 31 December 2020 includes:

i. Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECL) on financial assets measured at
amortized cost. The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

Loss allowances for lease receivable and contract assets are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This includes both guantitative and qualitative information and analysis,
based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

o the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the Company
to actions such as realizing security (if any is held); or

o the financial asset is 90 days or more past due.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Company is exposed to credit risk.

ii. Employees’ end of service benefits

The cost of end of service defined benefit and the present value of the related obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions which may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, withdrawal
before normal retirement age, mortality rates etc. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions
and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, yield and
duration of Saudi government bonds obligation with at least an ‘A’ rating or above, as set by an internationally
acknowledged rating agency, and extrapolated as needed along the yield curve to correspond with the expected term
of the defined benefit obligation. The underlying bonds are further reviewed for quality. Those having excessive
credit spreads are removed from the analysis of bonds on which the discount rate is based, on the basis that they do
not represent high quality bonds.

Age-wise “High” withdrawal rates are used in carrying out the valuation. These age-wise withdrawal rates are
generally used in the MENA region to carry out the actuarial valuation of end of service benefit schemes of
companies operating in leasing business.



2.

GULF LIFTING FINANCIAL LEASING COMPANY
(CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
(Expressed in Saudi Riyals)

BASIS OF PREPARATION, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

2.4 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions (Continued)

Vi.

Employees’ end of service benefits (Continued)

The rates assumed are based on the WHO 15 Ultimate mortality tables, rated down one year. In the absence of any
standard mortality tables in the region, these rates are generally used in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia in carrying out
the actuarial valuation of EOSB Schemes. If any other mortality table is used it will not make any significant
difference in the results.

. Useful lives of property and equipment and intangible assets

Management determines the estimated useful lives of property and equipment and intangible assets for calculating
depreciation and amortisation. This estimate is determined after considering expected usage of the assets and
physical wear and tear. Management reviews the residual value and useful lives annually and change in depreciation
charges and amortisation charges, if any, are adjusted in current and future periods.

. Measurement of fair values

Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-
financial assets and liabilities.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation

techniques as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy,
then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest
level input that is significant to the entire measurement. The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair
value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Zakat

The Company is subject to Zakat in accordance with the General Authority of Zakat and Tax (“GAZT”) regulations.
Zakat computation involves relevant knowledge and judgment of the Zakat rules and regulations to assess the impact
of Zakat liability at a particular period end. This liability is considered an estimate until the final assessment by
GAZT is carried out until which the Company retains exposure to additional Zakat liability.

Impairment of non-financial assets
At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non- financial assets to determine whether

there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into smallest group of assets that generated cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of cash inflows of other assets.

The recoverable amount of an asset is greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is
based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.



GULF LIFTING FINANCIAL LEASING COMPANY
(CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
(Expressed in Saudi Riyals)

BASIS OF PREPARATION, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Standards, new pronouncements and interpretations

New and revised standards with no material effect on the financial statements
The following revised IFRSs have been adopted. The application of these revised IFRSs did not have any material
impact on the amounts reported for current and prior periods.

Definition of a Business (Amendments to IFRS 3), effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020.

Definition of Material (Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8), effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2020.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7), effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Amendments to references to conceptual framework in IFRS standards, effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2020.

Extension of the Temporary Exemption from Applying IFRS 9 (Amendments to IFRS 4), effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

New and revised standards issued but not yet effective
The Company has not early adopted the following new and revised standards that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendments to IFRS 16), effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 June 2020.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16),
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37), effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020, effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022.

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to 1AS 16), effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3), effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to I1AS 1), effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

Amendments to IFRS 17, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to IFRS
10 and 1AS 28) with effective annual period yet to be determined.

The above-mentioned standards are not expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s financial
statements.



2.

GULF LIFTING FINANCIAL LEASING COMPANY
(CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
(Expressed in Saudi Riyals)

BASIS OF PREPARATION, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

2.6 Changes in accounting policies

2.7

2.7.1

The Company has applied the requirements of IAS 20 — Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance accounting principle for SAMA deposits received during the year 2020 (refer note 18). Upon
recognising the SAMA deposits the Company has applied below accounting policies:

Government grant

The Company recognises a government grant related to income, if there is a reasonable assurance that it will be
received and the Company will comply with the conditions associated with the grant. The benefit of a government
deposit at a below-market rate of profit is treated as a government grant related to income. The below-market rate
deposit is recognised and measured in accordance with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. The benefit of the below-
market rate of interest is measured as the difference between the initial fair value of the deposit determined in
accordance with IFRS 9 and the proceeds received. The benefit is accounted for in accordance with 1AS 20. The
government grant is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a systematic
basis over the period in which the Company recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grant is intended
to compensate.

Accounting policies
Following accounting policies have been applied in preparation of these financial statements. These policies have
been applied consistently for all period presented, except for those disclosed in note 2.6

Property and equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost less impairment losses, if any, and is not depreciated until the asset is
brought into commercial operations and available for intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. Cost incurred to replace a component of an item of property and equipment is
capitalized and the asset so replaced is retired from use. All other repairs and maintenance expenditure are charged
to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method over its estimated useful life of the assets as mentioned
below, after taking into account their respective residual value.

Number of years

Leasehold improvements 5
Office furniture and fixtures 5-7
Information technology equipment 4

All assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposal of property and equipment, if any, are taken to the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

The assets residual values, useful life and methods are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date.

10



2.7
2.7.2

2.7.3

GULF LIFTING FINANCIAL LEASING COMPANY
(CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
(Expressed in Saudi Riyals)

BASIS OF PREPARATION, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets, including Enterprise Resources Planning (“ERP”) software acquired by the Company and have
finite useful life are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortization is calculated to write-off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful life, and is generally recognized in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Amortization methods, useful life and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

Leases
I. Asalessor

Net investment in finance leases

The Company leases out heavy machinery and automobile to corporate customers. Leases in which the Company
transfers control incidental to the ownership of an asset to the lessee are classified as finance leases. Finance lease
are recorded at the inception of the lease at the lower of fair value of the leased assets and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. At the end of lease-term the Company transfers the title of underlying assets to the lessee.

Gross investment in finance leases include the total of future lease payments on finance leases (lease receivables),
plus estimated residual amounts receivable. The difference between the lease receivables and the cost of the leased
asset is recorded as unearned lease finance income and for presentation purposes, is deducted from the gross
investment in finance leases. The Company takes down payments on leases with the right to set off against the
residual value of leased assets and for presentation purposes, these down payments along with prepaid lease rentals
are deducted from gross investment in finance leases. The Company has applied IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts
with Customers” to allocate consideration in the contract to each lease and non-lease component.

1. Asalessee

The Company leases office building. As a lessee, the Company previously classified leases as operating or finance
leases based on its assessment of whether the lease transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership.
Under IFRS 16, the Company recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for most leases - i.e. these leases are
on-balance sheet.

Significant accounting policies

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use
asset is initially measured at cost, and subsequently at cost less any accumulated depreciation, impairment losses and
adjusted for certain remeasurement of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate
as the discount rate. The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and
decreased by lease payment made. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, a change in the estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or as appropriate, changes in the assessment of whether a purchase or extension option is reasonably
certain to be exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has applied judgement to determine the lease term for some lease contracts in which it is a lessee that
include renewal options. The assessment of whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise such options
impacts the lease term, which significantly affects the amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets recognised.
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2.7
2.7.4

2.7.5

2.7.6

2.7.7

GULF LIFTING FINANCIAL LEASING COMPANY
(CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
(Expressed in Saudi Riyals)

BASIS OF PREPARATION, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Accounting policies (Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events
and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is
recognized as finance cost.

Zakat

Zakat is provided on accrual basis in accordance with the Regulations of the General Authority of Zakat and Tax
(the “GAZT”) in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and on accrual basis. Zakat is charged to the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

EXxpenses

Expenses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when decrease in future
economic benefit related to a decrease in an asset or an increase in a liability has arisen that can be measured reliably.
Expenses are recognized on the basis of a direct association between the costs incurred and the earning of specific
items of income; on the basis of systematic and rational allocation procedures when economic benefits are expected
to arise over the accounting period. Expenses are analysed based on their nature.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

i) Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified and measured at amortized cost, FVOCI or FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its business
model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the
first reporting period following the change in the business model.

Financial assets at amortized cost
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as
at FVTPL:

o the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and profit on the principal amount outstanding.

The financial instruments not measured at fair value are short-term financial assets and financial liabilities whose
carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits with banks and other short term investments in an active
market with original maturities of three months or less.

The Company classify cash and cash equivalents, finance lease receivables and other receivables as financial assets
at amortized cost.
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2.7.7

b)

c)

GULF LIFTING FINANCIAL LEASING COMPANY
(CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
(Expressed in Saudi Riyals)

BASIS OF PREPARATION, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
i) Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”)
A financial asset is measured at fair value through FVOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL.

o it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

e its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principle and profit on
the principle amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis. The
Company does not have any financial assets that are designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI).

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL.
On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements
to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Business model assessment

The Company assesses the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at a portfolio level because this
best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to management. The information considered
includes:

o the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. In particular,
whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest
rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of the liabilities or expected cash outflows
or realizing cash flows through the sale of the assets;

¢ how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported:;

o the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business
model) and how those risks are managed;

¢ how managers of the business are compensated- e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assets
managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

o the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its
expectations about future sales activity. However, information about sales activity is not considered in isolation,
but as part of an overall assessment of how the Company's stated objective for managing the financial assets is
achieved and how cash flows are realized.

Transfer of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered
sales for the purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are
measured at FVTPL.
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GULF LIFTING FINANCIAL LEASING COMPANY
(CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
(Expressed in Saudi Riyals)

BASIS OF PREPARATION, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
i) Financial assets (Continued)
Business model assessment (Continued)

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking 'worst case' or 'stress case'
scenarios into account.

If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that is different from the Company's original expectations,
the Company does not change the classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business model, but
incorporates such information when assessing newly purchased financial assets going forward.

Financial assets that are held for trading and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at
FVTPL because they are neither held to collect contractual cash flows nor held both to collect contractual cash flows
and to sell financial assets.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, “principal” is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition.
‘interest ° is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal
amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk
and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company considers
the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term
that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making
this assessment, the Company considers;

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features;

prepayment and extension features; and

terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features)

A prepayment feature is consistent with solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment amount
substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which may
include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset
acquired at a discount or premium to its contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an
amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which
may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion
if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

ii) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at
FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense,
are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Other financial liabilities
(including loans and borrowings and accounts and other payables) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange losses are recognized in statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.
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GULF LIFTING FINANCIAL LEASING COMPANY
(CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
(Expressed in Saudi Riyals)

BASIS OF PREPARATION, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
i) Financial liabilities (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition. For purchased
or originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is calculated by discounting the
estimated future cash flows, including expected credit losses, to the amortized cost of the debt instrument on initial
recognition.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

When available, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted prices in an active market
for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient
frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an on-going basis. The Company measures instruments
quoted in an active market as per the official closing price in the related stock exchange where the instrument is
traded.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Company uses valuation techniques that maximize the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates
all of the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period
during which the change has occurred.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flow from the asset expire, or it
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of the financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying
amount allocated to the portion of the asset that is derecognized) and the consideration received (including any new
asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Any interest in such transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Company is recognized as
a separate asset or liability.
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GULF LIFTING FINANCIAL LEASING COMPANY
(CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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BASIS OF PREPARATION, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

Financial liability

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognized on fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the
consideration paid (including any non- cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position

when, and only when, the Company has legally enforceable right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle
them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis for gain and losses from financial instruments at FVTPL and
foreign exchange gains and losses.

iii) Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9 replaces the 'incurred loss' model with an ‘expected credit loss' model (ECL). IFRS 9 requires the Company
to record an allowance for ECLs for all loans and other debt financial assets not held at FVTPL, together with loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts. The allowance is based on the ECLs associated with the probability
of default in the next twelve months unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination. If
the financial asset meets the definition of purchased or originated credit impaired (POCI), the allowance is based
on the change in the ECLs over the life of the asset.

Under IFRS 9, credit losses are recognized earlier than under previous accounting standard.

The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for finance lease receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, finance lease receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating the ECL’s, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based
on the company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward- looking information.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:
- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligation to the Company in full, without recourse by the Company to
actions such as realizing security (if any is held); or
- the financial asset is 90 days or more past due.

Life time ECLs are the ECLSs that result from default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The Maximum credit period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the
Company is exposed to credit risk.
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GULF LIFTING FINANCIAL LEASING COMPANY
(CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
(Expressed in Saudi Riyals)

BASIS OF PREPARATION, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Accounting policies (Continued)

2.7.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

2.7.8

Measurement of Expected Credit Losses:

ECLs are a probability — weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash
shortfalls (i-e the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and cash flows
that the company expects to receive).

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost and debt securities
at FVOCI (if any) are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- due to significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

- abreach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due;

- the restructuring of a finance lease receivable by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise;

- itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the
assets. For debt securities at FVOCI (If any), the loss allowance is charged to the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Write off:

The Company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is sufficient evaluation that collection will not be possible, for example when
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the Company’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Impairment of Non-financial assets
At each reporting date, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its non- financial assets to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into smallest group of assets that generated cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of cash inflows of other assets.

The recoverable amount of an asset is greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is
based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre- tax discount rate based on
the estimated future cash flows, discounted their present value using a pre-tax discount rate the reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the assets.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. They are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (If any), and then reduce the carrying amount of other
assets on pro rata basis. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed, for other assets, an impairment
less is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
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GULF LIFTING FINANCIAL LEASING COMPANY
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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BASIS OF PREPARATION, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Accounting policies (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and at banks including investments with original maturity of less
than three months from the contract date.

Proposed dividend and transfer between reserves

Dividends and appropriations to reserves, except appropriations which are required by law, made subsequent to the
statement of financial position date are considered as non-adjusting events and are recorded in the financial
statements in the year in which they are approved and transfers are made.

2.7.11 Revenue recognition-Finance leases

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. Interest
income is included in finance income in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Service fees charged in respect incidental services are recognized over the period of contract.

2.7.12 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of special
commission expense and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

2.7.13 Statutory reserve

As required by Saudi Arabian Regulations for Companies and the Company’s By-laws, 10% of the income for the
period should be transferred to the statutory reserve. This reserve is not available for distribution. As per the By-
laws, the Company may resolve to discontinue such transfers when the reserve totals 30% of the paid up share capital.

2.7.14 Employee benefits

i)

Short term employee benefits o ) S _
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount

expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of
past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

ii) Employees' end-of-service benefits liabilities

The Company operates a non-funded employee end-of-service benefit plan, which is classified as defined benefit
obligation under IAS 19 'Employee Benefits'. A defined benefit plan is a plan which is not a defined contribution
plan. The defined benefit obligation is calculated by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method.
Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in full in the period in which they occur in the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income. Such actuarial gains and losses are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods.

Past service costs are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on the earlier of:
e The date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and
¢ The date on which the Company recognizes related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability. The Company recognizes
the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under ‘salaries and related expenses’ and ‘finance cost’
in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income:
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BASIS OF PREPARATION, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Accounting policies (Continued)

e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-
routine settlements
o Net interest expense or income

The defined benefit liability comprises the present value of the defined benefit obligation, less past service costs.

NET INVESTMENT IN FINANCE LEASES

2020 2019
Gross investment in finance lease 130,261,165 112,145,550
Less: Unearned finance lease income (22,500,276) (18,065,800)
Net investment in finance leases 107,760,889 94,079,750
Provision for lease losses (16,570,840) (2,271,898)
91,190,049 91,807,852
Current maturity (32,979,873) (35,247,500)
58,210,176 56,560,352

As at 31 December 2020, net investments in finance leases includes receivable from two delinquent customers
amounting to SR 15,354,339 (2019: 15,354,339). The Company initiated legal proceedings for recovering these
receivables. These receivables are secured by way of promissory notes and the title deeds of underlying leased
assets are also in the name of the Company. The Company has recorded a provision of SAR 15,243,756 as at 31
December 2020 in relation to these customers as the outcome of the legal proceedings remains uncertain.

The movement in the provision for lease losses was as follows:

2020 2019
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,271,898 1,464,909
Allowance for the year 14,298,942 806,989
Balance at the end of the year 16,570,840 2,271,898

The maturity of the gross investment in finance leases as at 31 December 2020 is as follows:

Gross

investment in Unearned finance Net investment in

finance leases lease income finance leases
Not later than one year 44,064,542 11,084,669 32,979,873
One to two years 44,125,718 6,947,358 37,178,360
Two to three years 24,855,664 3,242,556 21,613,108
Three to four years 10,826,637 1,059,573 9,767,064
Four to five years 6,388,604 166,120 6,222,484
130,261,165 22,500,276 107,760,889

NET INVESTMENT IN FINANCE LEASES (Continued)
The maturity of the gross investment in finance leases as at 31 December 2019 is as follows:
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Gross investment  Unearned finance  Net investment in

in finance leases lease income finance leases
Not later than one year 44,388,359 9,140,859 35,247,500
One to two years 37,657,510 5,827,779 31,829,731
Two to three years 20,483,835 2,491,868 17,991,967
Three to four years 6,901,281 552,912 6,348,369
Four to five years 2,714,565 52,382 2,662,183
112,145,550 18,065,800 94,079,750

INVESTMENT

Based on the instructions of Saudi Central Bank (formerly Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority) (“SAMA”) in the
month of December 2017 a new entity was incorporated to register the leasing contracts in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia called “Saudi for leasing registration (“the Investee). SAMA instructed all leasing companies and banks to
contribute to the capital of the new investee. The Company contributed SR 892,850 in December 2017. In 2018, the
Company has received 89,285 shares (2% of total shares) and classified the investment as fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI).

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible asset represents license for software.

2020 2019
Cost:
1 January 2,195,501 1,314,250
Additions - 881,251
31 December 2,195,501 2,195,501
Accumulated amortization:
1 January 1,404,697 1,222,433
Charge for the year 102,842 182,264
31 December 1,507,539 1,404,697
Carrying amounts:
31 December 687,962 790,804

20



GULF LIFTING FINANCIAL LEASING COMPANY
(CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
(Expressed in Saudi Riyals)

6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Office Information
Leasehold furniture and technology
improvements fixtures equipment Total
Cost:
1 January 2019 228,797 162,495 323,160 714,452
Additions during the year - - 2,600 2,600
31 December 2019 228,797 162,495 325,760 717,052
1 January 2020 228,797 162,495 325,760 717,052
Additions during the year 132,700 - 140,830 273,530
Disposals during the year - - (2,856) (2,856)
31 December 2020 361,497 162,495 463,734 987,726
Accumulated depreciation:
1 January 2019 112,872 43,569 145,664 302,105
Charge for the year 57,201 23,212 81,104 161,517
31 December 2019 170,073 66,781 226,768 463,622
1 January 2020 170,073 66,781 226,768 463,622
Charge for the year 61,526 23,213 96,118 180,857
Related to disposals - - (635) (635)
31 December 2020 231,599 89,994 322,251 643,844
Carrying amounts:
31 December 2020 129,898 72,501 141,483 343,882
31 December 2019 58,724 95,714 98,992 253,430
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Cash in hand 180 1,418
Cash at bank 18,962,725 1,894,590
Short term deposits 103,721,248 92,377,104

122,684,153 94,273,112

Short term bank deposits are denominated in Saudi Riyals and United States Dollars with local banks and are made
for varying periods from 1 month to 3 month and carry interest rates ranging from (0.10% to 2.00%) per annum

(2019: 1.4% to 2.9%).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Related parties represented shareholder, directors and key management personnel of the Company, and entity

controlled or significantly influenced by such parties:

The Company is required to pay remuneration to the members of Board of Directors, under Bye-Laws, for
participation in Board of Director’s meeting held during the period, all the directors have waived their right to

receive the remuneration.

Prices and terms of payment with related parties are approved by the management. Amount due to related parties

are disclosed in the statement of financial position.

Transactions with related party

2020 2019
Yusuf Bin Ahmed Kanoo Company Limited — a shareholder
Reimbursement of expenses 30,173 10,919
Collections made on behalf of the Company - 2,288,758
AXA Cooperative Insurance Company — other related party
Purchase of insurance 1,043,814 791,889
Kanoo Travels — other related party
Purchase of travel tickets 3,271 41,309
Key management personnel compensation comprised of the following transactions:
2020 2019
Transactions:
Compensation of key management personnel 1,568,208 564,155
Audit committee remuneration 205,844 210,994

Employees’ end of service benefits include an amount pertaining to key management personnel
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (Continued)

The above mentioned significant transactions with related parties resulted in the following balances:

Due to related parties

2020 2019
Yusuf Bin Ahmed Kanoo Company Limited 148,992 118,819
AXA Cooperative Insurance Company 2,398 13,262
Kanoo Travels 45,688 42,417
197,078 174,498
SHARE CAPITAL
The pattern of shareholding as of 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 is as follows:
Percentage
of Number of
ownership Shares Amount SR
Yusuf Bin Ahmed Kanoo Company Limited 94 9,400,000 94,000,000
Ali Abdulla Kanoo 1 100,000 1,000,000
Ali Abdulaziz Kanoo 1 100,000 1,000,000
Saud Abdulaziz Kanoo 1 100,000 1,000,000
Bader Abdulaziz Kanoo 1 100,000 1,000,000
Faisal Khalid Kanoo 1 100,000 1,000,000
Ahmed Fawzi Kanoo 1 100,000 1,000,000
100 10,000,000 100,000,000

EMPLOYEES' END OF SERVICE BENEFITS

In accordance with the provisions of IAS 19, management has carried out an exercise to assess the present value of
its defined benefit obligations in respect of employees' end of service benefits payable under relevant local regulations

and contractual arrangements.

The Company recognized the benefits in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The benefit
is based on employees’ final salaries and allowances and their cumulative years of service, as stated in the laws of

Saudi Arabia.

The following table summarizes the components of the net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income and amounts recognized in the statement of financial position.

Net benefit expense recognised in the profit or loss and other comprehensive income

2020 2019

Included in profit or loss
Current service cost 112,594 84,480
Interest cost on benefit obligation 6,051 6,331

118,645 90,811
Included in other comprehensive income
Re-measurement gains and losses on obligation
Loss / (gain) due to change in experience adjustments 46,432 (5,039)

46,432 (5,039
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EMPLOYEES' END OF SERVICE BENEFITS (Continued)
Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation:

2020 2019
Balance at 1 January 166,848 119,049
Current service cost / charge for the year 112,594 84,480
Interest cost 6,051 6,331
Benefits paid (102,860) (37,973)
Actuarial gain on the obligation 46,432 (5,039)
Balance at 31 December 229,065 166,848
Significant assumptions used in determining the post-employment defined benefit obligation includes the following:

2020 2019
Discount rate 1.80% 2.80%
Salary increase rate short term 1.80% 2.80%

WHO SA16 - WHO SA16 -

Mortality rates 75% 75%
Rates of employee turnover Heavy Heavy

The table below illustrates the approximate impact on the defined benefit obligation if the Company were to change
one key assumption, while the other actuarial assumptions remain unchanged. The sensitivity analyses below has
been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on the defined benefit obligation as a result of
reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period. The sensitivity analysis may not
be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions
would occur in isolation of one another.

Sensitivity analysis 2020 2019
Increase

Discount rate (+50 bps) 220,915 161,230
Salary increase rate (+50 bps) 237,703 172,829
Decrease

Discount rate (-50 bps) 237,747 172,860
Salary increase rate (-50 bps) 220,876 161,203

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period is 7.34 years (2019: 6.96
years).
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11. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

12.

Accrued expenses
Other payables

ZAKAT
a) Charge for the year

i) Zakat charge for the year ended 31 December comprises of the following:

Zakat charge for the year
Zakat refund

i) The significant components of Zakat base for the Company are as follows:

Shareholders’ equity
Other adjustments

Adjusted profit for the year
Zakat base

2020 2019
200,275 230,400
302,583 143,488
502,858 373,888

2020 2019
232,168 703,757

: (3,121,376)
232,168 (2,417,619)

2020 2019

8,982,246 27,301,896

8,982,246 27,301,896

On 7 Rajab 1440H corresponding to 14 March 2019G, GAZT issued Zakat rules for financing activities. The rules
are applicable for entities conducting financing activities for the fiscal years commenced on or after 1 January
2019. Consequently, the provision for Zakat for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 has been calculated

based on the new rules.

Significant components of Zakat base of the Company principally comprise of shareholders’ equity at the
beginning of the year, adjusted net income and certain other items. Some of these amounts have been adjusted in

arriving at Zakat charge for the year

b) Provision for Zakat

The movement in provision for Zakat during the year is as follows:

Balance at beginning of the year
Add: Charge for the year

Less: Refunds

Less: Payments during the year
Balance at end of the year

2020 2019
900,560 3,325,529
232,168 703,757

- (3,121,376)
- (7,350)
1,132,728 900,560

Zakat for the year is payable at 2.5% of higher of the approximate Zakat base and adjusted net income attributable

to the shareholders.

25



12.

13.

14.

GULF LIFTING FINANCIAL LEASING COMPANY
(CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
(Expressed in Saudi Riyals)

ZAKAT (Continued)

¢) Status of assessments

The Company has submitted its Zakat declarations with the General Authority of Zakat and Tax (GAZT) up to the
year 2019. The Company has obtained its Zakat certificate for the year ended 31 December 2019, which is valid up
to 30 April 2021.

The GAZT has issued a Zakat assessment for the year 2016 through a letter dated 11 March 2019 (ref: 026000039227)
with an additional liability of Zakat amounted to SR 1,607,005 (excluding the delayed penalty of SAR 1,184,035 as
at 31 December 2020). The Company has filed an objection letter against the GAZT’s assessment for the year 2016
on 6 May 2019 and received a rejection letter on 16 September 2019. Pursuant to the receipt of the rejection letter,
on 14 October 2019, the Company has filed an appeal against the rejection to the General Secretariat of Tax
Committees - Committee for Resolution of Tax Violations and Disputes and received a rejection ruling on 30 August
2020. Pursuant to the receipt of the rejection, on 29 September 2020, the Company has filed an appeal to the General
Secretariat of Tax Committees - Appellate Committee for Tax Violations and Disputes Resolution. The Management
of the Company has assessed their position and as per their assessment it is highly likely that the case will be settled
in favor of the Company.

Zakat refund

During the year 2019, pursuant to the issuance of Royal Decree (M/26) dated 20 Rabi Al-Awwal 1440H and the letter
issued by GAZT dated 5 February 2019 (Ref: 1440/1/747) the Company is entitled to Zakat refund amounted to SR
3,121,376. As result of the acknowledgment by the management on 3 March 2019 GAZT has issued credit in favor
of the Company.

OTHER INCOME

2020 2019
Interest income on short term deposits 762,493 2,434,059
Otherst 944,679 26,107
1,707,172 2,460,166

10thers include VAT refunds for the year 2018-2019 amounting to SR 928,558 for the year ended 31 December
2020 (2019: Nil).

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

The basic and diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the income for the year attributable to the
shareholders by weighted average number of shares at the end of the year.

Basic and diluted earnings / (loss) per share: 2020 2019

(Loss) / profit for the year (17,135,543) 5,797,589

Weighted average number of outstanding shares
Number of shares 10,000,000 10,000,000

Basic and diluted (loss) / earnings per share (1.71) 058
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LEASES

Operating lease primarily contains rental expenses for office premises and these rental contracts are for 1 year.
Expenses relating to such rentals are recognized in the statement of statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. The commitments for minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases are
as follows:

2020 2019
Expenses relating to short-term leases 560,771 350,734
2020 2019
Within one year - 226,800
Total - 226,800

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENT

The Company has no commitments and contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil), except as disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk is inherent in the Company's activities and is managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement
and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk management is critical to the Company's
continuing profitability. The Company's activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks which mainly include
market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Risk management structure

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company's risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's
risk management policies.

Audit Committee

The audit committee is appointed by the Board of Directors. The audit committee assists the Board in carrying out its
responsibilities with respect to assessing the quality and integrity of financial reporting and risk management, the
audit thereof and the soundness of the internal controls of the Company.

Internal Audit

All key operational, financial and risk management processes are audited by the Internal Audit. Internal audit
examines the adequacy of the relevant policies and procedures, the Company's compliance with the internal policies
and regulatory guidelines. Internal audit discusses the results of all assessments with management and reports its
findings and recommendations to the Audit Committee.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Risk management structure (Continued)

Risk Committee

Board of Directors of the Company has established a risk committee. The primary responsibility of the risk
committee is to oversee and approve the company-wide risk management practices to assist the board in overseeing
risks, such as financial, credit, market, liquidity, security, legal, regulatory, reputational, and other risks.

The risks faced by the Company and the way these risks are mitigated by management are summarized below.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate as a result
of changes in market profit rates or the market prices of securities due to change in credit rating of the issuer or the
instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities and liquidity in the
market.

Market risk comprises of two types of risk: currency risk and other price risk.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial assets may fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. The Company's principal transactions are carried in Saudi Riyals. Management believes
that there is minimal risk of significant losses due to exchange rate fluctuations as the majority of the monetary assets
and liabilities are in Saudi Riyals or currencies which are pegged to the Saudi Riyal and consequently the Company
does not hedge its foreign currency exposure.

Other price risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate because of
changes in market prices (other than those arising from special commission rate risk or currency risk) whether those
changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instruments or its issuer, or factors affecting all
similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Company does not have any financial instruments which are
subject to other price risk.

Special commission rate risk

The special commission rate risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate due to changes
in the market interest rates. As the Company’s financial instruments are interest at fixed rates, the Company is not
subject to special commission rate risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument may fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other
party to incur a financial loss. The Company has established procedures to manage credit exposure including
evaluation of lessees’ credit worthiness, formal credit approvals, assigning credit limits, obtaining collateral such as
down payments and personal guarantees. Individual lease contracts generally are for terms not exceeding sixty-
months.

The credit risks on gross amounts due in relation to the investment in finance leases is mitigated by the retention of
title on leased assets and down payments.

2020 2019
Net investment in finance leases 91,190,049 91,840,619
Other receivables 2,388,559 3,017,648
Cash at bank 122,684,153 94,271,694
216,262,761 189,129,961
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

17.2 Credit risk (Continued)

a)

b)

Net investment in finance leases

The investment in finance leases generally expose to significant credit risk. Therefore, the Company has established
a number of procedures to manage credit exposure including evaluation of lessees' credit worthiness, formal credit

approvals, assigning credit limits, obtaining collateral and personal guarantees.

The Company follows a credit classification mechanism, primarily driven by day’s delinquency as a tool to manage
the quality of credit risk of the lease portfolio. Further, the company has categorized its lease receivables into four
sub categories on the basis of similar credit risk characteristics. Exposures within each credit risk category are
segmented by industrial classification and an ECL rate is calculated for each segment based on the delinquency status
and actual credit loss experience over the past years. These rates are multiplied by scaler factors to reflect differences
between economic conditions, current conditions and management’s view of economic conditions over the expected

age of the receivables.

Scalar factors are based on the country specific risk 0.98% and industry specific risk 0.5%.

Expected credit loss assessment for the lease receivables are as follows:

Net
Weighted investment Credit
average loss in finance Impairment loss impaired
31 December 2020 rate leases allowance
Corporate 1.57% 27,590,790 434,234 No
Medium enterprise 1.14% 39,297,514 449,326 No
Small enterprises 1.73% 25,628,829 443,524 No
Credit impaired balances 100% 15,243,756 15,243,756 Yes
Total 107,760,889 16,570,840
Weighted Net
average loss investment in Impairment loss Credit
31 December 2019 rate finance leases allowance impaired
Corporate 1.29% 31,086,250 402,067 No
Medium enterprise 1.29% 44,655,258 577,570 No
Small enterprises 1.88% 17,372,687 326,706 No
Credit impaired balances 100% 965,555 965,555 Yes
Total 94,079,750 2,271,898

The Company as at 31 December 2020 has impairment loss allowance of SR 16.57 million (2019: SR 2.27 million).

In addition, finance lease receivables are secured against leased assets.

The credit quality of Company's bank balances are assessed with reference to external credit worthiness which all

are above investment grade rating.

Geographical segment analysis
The Company's operations are restricted to Kingdom of Saudi Arabia only.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements

The Company does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with its
financial assets, except that the credit risk associated with the net investment in finance lease. The credit risks on net
investment in finance leases are mitigated by retention of title of leased assets. Further, the Company has obtained
promissory notes from lessee customers.

Bank balances and other receivables
Funds are placed with banks having good credit ratings and therefore are not subject to significant credit risk. Other
receivables are neither significant nor exposed to significant credit risk.

Concentration risk

Concentrations of credit risk arises when a number of counter-parties are engaged in similar business activities, or
activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet
contractual obligations to be affected similarly by changes in economic, political or other conditions.

Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments
affecting a particular industry or geographical location.

The Company manages its credit risk exposure through diversification of leasing activities to ensure that there is no
undue concentration of risks with individuals or groups of customers in specific locations or businesses.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall
due. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Company will be required to pay its liabilities earlier
than expected or will face difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial liabilities as they
fall due. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stress conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

The contractual maturities of liabilities have been determined on the basis of the remaining period at the statement
of financial position date to the contractual maturity date and do not take account of the effective maturities as
indicated by the Company's availability of liquid funds. Management monitors the maturity profile to ensure that
adequate liquidity is maintained. The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company's liabilities based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows:

Within 3 3tol2 1to5 No fixed
31 December 2020 months Months years maturity Total
Liabilities
Deposits from SAMA 2,871,172 18,117,278 23,740,763 - 44,729,213
Trade payables 84,404 - - 84,404
Accrued expenses and
other liabilities 502,858 - - - 502,858
Due to related parties 197,078 - - - 197,078
3,655,512 18,117,278 23,740,763 - 45,513,553
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Liquidity risk
Within 3 3t012 1to5 No fixed
31 December 2019 months Months years maturity Total
Liabilities
Trade payables 577,563 - - - 577,563
Accrued expenses and
other liabilities 373,888 - - - 373,888
Due to related parties 174,498 - - - 174,498
1,125,949 - - - 1,125,949

Capital risk management

The objective of the Company when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and to maintain a strong
capital base to support the sustained development of its business. The Company manages its capital structure by
monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31
December 2020.

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date (i.e. an exit price). The Company’s financial assets consist of
cash and cash equivalents, short-term deposits, finance lease receivables, due from a related party, available-for-sale
investments and its financial liabilities consist of accrued expenses and other liabilities and, due to a related party.

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are not materially different from their carrying values at the reporting
date.

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial assets:

Level 1: quoted prices in active markets for the same instrument (i.e., without modification or repackaging);

Level 2: quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and liabilities or other valuation techniques for which all
significant inputs are based on observable market data; and

Level 3: valuation techniques for which any significant input is not based on observable market data
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued)

Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments that are carried in the financial

statements

31 December 2020
Financial assets
Finance lease receivable
Other current assets
Cash and bank balances
Investment

Total financial assets
Financial liabilities

Deposits from SAMA
Trade payables

Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Due to related parties

Total financial liabilities

31 December 2019
Financial assets
Finance lease receivable
Other current assets
Cash and bank balances
Investment

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities
Trade payables

Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Due to related parties

Total financial liabilities

Carrying Amount Fair Value
Financial assetsat Mandatory FVOCI —equity  Other financial
amortised cost at FVTPL investments liabilities Total Level 1l Level2 Level3 Total
91,190,049 - - - 91,190,049 - - - -
2,388,559 - - - 2,388,559 - - - -
122,684,153 - - - 122,684,153 - - - -
- - 892,850 - 892,850 - - 892,850 892,850
216,262,761 - 892,850 - 217,105,611 - - 892,850 892,850
42,661,481 - - - 42,661,481 - - - -
- - - 84,404 84,404 - - - -
- - - 502,858 502,858 - - - -
- - - 197,078 197,078 - - - -
42,661,481 - - 784,340 43,445,821 - - - -
Carrying Amount Fair Value
Financial assets at Mandatory ~ FVOCI —equity Other financial
amortised cost at FVTPL investments liabilities Total Level1l Level2 Level3 Total
91,840,619 - - - 91,840,619 - - - -
3,017,648 - - - 3,017,648 - - - -
94,273,112 - - - 94,273,112 - - - -
- - 892,850 - 892,850 - - 892,850 892,850
189,131,379 - 892,850 - 190,024,229 - - 892,850 892,850
- - - 577,563 577,563 - - - -
- - - 373,888 373,888 - - - -
- - - 174,498 174,498 - - - -
- - - 1,125,949 1,125,949 - - - -
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SIGNIFICANT MATTERS DURING THE YEAR

On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organisation (“WHQO”) declared the Coronavirus (“COVID-19”) outbreak as a
pandemic in recognition of its rapid spread across the globe. This outbreak has also affected the GCC region including
the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Governments all over the world took steps to contain the spread of the virus. Saudi Arabia
in particular has implemented closure of borders, released social distancing guidelines and enforced country wide
lockdowns and curfews.

Oil prices have also witnessed significant volatility during the current period, owing not just to demand issues arising
from COVID-19 as the world economies go into lockdown, but also supply issues driven by volume which had predated
the pandemic. For the Company, whose operations are largely concentrated in an economy which is primarily based on
oil, the economic impacts of the above events, though the scale and duration of which remains uncertain, primarily
include:

= Significant business interruption arising from hinderance in generating new originations, travel restrictions and
unavailability of personnel etc.;

= Deterioration in credit worthiness of customers in particular to those working or involved in ‘highly exposed sectors’
such as transportation, tourism, hospitality, entertainment, construction and retail; and

= Asignificant increase in economic uncertainty, evidenced by more volatile asset prices and currency exchange rates,
and a general decline in interest rates globally.

Collectively, these current events and the prevailing conditions require the Company to analyze the likely impact of
these events on the business operations. The Board of Directors and the management of the Company have evaluated
the current situation and accordingly, have activated its business continuity planning and other risk management
practices to manage the potential business disruption COVID-19 outbreak may have on its operations and financial
performance.

The pandemic has also required the Company to revise certain inputs and assumptions used for the determination of
expected credit losses (“ECL”). These primarily revolved around adjusting macroeconomic factors such as expected oil
prices and GDP and revaluating the methods of scenario construction and the underlying weightages assigned to these
scenarios to estimate the likelihood and severity of these for the ECL determination. As a result, the Company has
provided an additional amount of SR 14.3 million as an impairment loss. Further, the Company will continue to
individually assess significant corporate exposures as more reliable data becomes available and accordingly determine
if any additional ECL amounts need to be recognized. (Refer Note 3).

SAMA programs and initiatives launched

In response to COVID-19, SAMA launched the Private Sector Financing Support Program (“PSFSP”) in March 2020
to provide the necessary support to the SME sector through empowering and facilitating the financing community. The
PSFSP mainly encompasses the following programs:

= Deferred payments program;
= Funding for lending program;
= Loan guarantee program; and
= Point of sale (“POS”) and e-commerce service fee support program.

As part of the deferred payments program, the Company was initially required to defer payments for six months on
lease contracts to the customers that qualify as SMEs. The payment reliefs are considered as short-term liquidity support
to address the borrower’s potential cash flow issues. The Company has effected the payment reliefs by deferring the
instalments falling due within the period from 14 March 2020 to 31 March 2021 for a period of twelve and half months.
The accounting impact of these changes in terms of the credit facilities has been assessed as per the requirements of
IFRS 9 as modification in terms of arrangement. The impact due to change in modification for eligible lease contracts
had an additional expense of SR 7.01 million recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT MATTERS DURING THE YEAR (Continued)

Further, in order to compensate all the related costs that the Company is expected to incur under the SAMA and
other public authorities program, the Company has received a profit free deposit of SR 54.93 million from SAMA.
Out of the aforementioned profit free deposit, the Company has refunded SR 10.20 million to SAMA in 2020. The
benefit of the subsidised funding rate has been accounted for on a systematic basis, in accordance with government
grant accounting requirements. This resulted in recognition of income amounting to SR 2.07 million. The same has
been recognised in the statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2020. The management has
exercised certain judgements in the recognition and measurement of this grant income.

On a net basis, the Company has incurred a notional loss of SR 4.94 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
(31 December 2019: nil), related to SAMA deferred payment program. Had the Company not entered in the SAMA
deferred payment program, the loss of the Company would have reduced by the same amount.

This program has been introduced for initial period of six months from 14 March 2020 to 14 September 2020, this
program has been extended for 3 months from 15 September 2020 to 14 December 2020. During December 2020
SAMA has further extended the program till 31 March 2021.

18.1 Deposits from Saudi Central Bank (SAMA)

2020 2019
Deposits received, net of refunds? 42,661,481 -
Current 19,589,379 -
Non-current 23,072,102 -
42,661,481 R

During the year 2020, the Company have received interest free refundable deposits amounting to SR 54,925,001
from SAMA. Out the total receipts, the Company had repaid SR 10,195,789 in 2020. The carrying amount of SR
42,661,481 includes a notional net gain amounting to SR 2,067,731 due to of the benefit of the subsidised funding
rate. (refer note 2.6).

18.2 Loss on account of participation to SAMA deferred payment program

2020 2019
Gain on account of fair value adjustments for interest free
SAMA deposits, net (2,067,731) -
Loss on account modification of lease contracts payment terms 7,008,424 -
4,940,693 -

19. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In the opinion of management, there have been no significant subsequent events since the year ended 31 December
2020 that would have a material impact on the financial position of the Company as reflected in these financial
statements.

20. BOARD OF DIRECTORS APPROVAL

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 20 Rajab 1442H corresponding to 4 March 2021G.
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4.5.4.3 Credit loss for finance lease receivables

(?) Detailed Description

The preparation of the estimate of the valuation of lease receivables (residual value impairment) involves subjective judgment or uncertainties, which required
special audit consideration because of the likelihood and potential magnitude of misstatements in the carrying value of the leased assets. Where the leased
asset is expected to realize less than the residual value used to price the contract originally, the entity may be required to impair the asset.

Significant Account(s)/Disclosure(s) Estimate Risk Of Error Risk Of Fraud

Current Maturity of net investment in financial

O ] ] ] 4] O O 4] O
lease
Net Investment in Financial Lease - non

O O O
curreent
Finance Lease O O O 7 O O O 7 O

Relevant factors considered in identifying the significant risk. (For fraud risks, it is not necessary to duplicate fraud risk factors documented at 2.14.2.)

There may be a risk that the Finance lease receivable balances are not valued properly.
The provision for bad debts involve management estimate as per the ECL model the estimate need to consider the expected credit losses as envisaged in IFRS
9. Revision in estimates and judgments may also be required based on risk profile and concentration of risk.

Summary of RoMM due to error for assertions associated with the significant risk of error

Rationale if RoMM assessment is inconsistent with
Significant Account(s) / Disclosure(s) RoMM matrix and/or RoMM is assessed as Low for an
assertion associated with a significant risk

Rationale for reassessment of RoMM, including

reassessed control risk

Current Maturity of net investment in Not applicable
financial lease

Test of operating effectiveness? N N N N
Inherent Risk of Error S S S S
Initial Control Risk H H H H
Initial RoMM due to error H H H M
Reassessed RoMM due to error N/S N/S N/S N/S
Net Investment in Financial Lease - non Not applicable
curreent

Test of operating effectiveness? N N N N

Inherent Risk of Error S S S S

Initial Control Risk H H H H

Initial RoMM due to error H H H M

Reassessed RoMM due to error N/S N/S N/S N/S
Finance Lease N/A

Test of operating effectiveness? Y

Inherent Risk of Error S






Initial Control Risk H

Initial RoMM due to error H

Reassessed RoMM due to error N/S

£l Reassessed RoMM due to error is low for at least one assertion. There is a rebuttable presumption that RoMM for assertions associated with significant risks will
be no less than moderate.

Approach to address the significant risk, including how the nature, timing, and extent of tests of controls, if applicable, and substantive procedures are specifically
responsive to the significant risk.

We will performed the following procedures to ensure that the V of trade receivables is not significantly misstated:

- We will review the debtors provisioning policy of the Company.

- We will check the adequacy of the debtors provisioning (as per the Company's policy) by obtaining the debtors ageing listing as at 31 December 2020.

- We will review the ECL model prepared by the management and will review the accuracy provision as per the model.

- We will review the significant assumptions made by the management in relation to the ECL Model.

- We will check all the legal cases against debtors as at 31 December 2020 and will ensure that provision has been created in the books of accounts of the
Company.

-We will performed a debtor's exposure analysis.

-We will involve KPMG FRM Specialist in order to independently calculate provision as per the IFRS - 9, which is based current and historical aging buckets for
lease receivables.

-We will circularize debtor's for balance confirmation and performed alternative procedures if not received confirmations.

Testing results over controls that are intended to address the significant risk

Risk Of TOE
Failure Results

Identifier Control Type of risk control addresses Processes WCGW Nature IPE

AL For at least one assertion, there are no controls selected to address the significant risk. Evaluation of Design and Implementation of control(s) is required for a
significant risk.

,'9:- No control deficiencies have been associated with the assertions of account(s)/disclosure(s) to which this significant risk related

Were there any deficiencies in process/transaction level O VYes O No (® Not Selected
controls that were intended to address the significant risk?

Results of substantive procedures that are specifically responsive to the significant risk

*Audit
" Type of risk Procedure o Misstatement Evidence
Identifier Procedure procedure Timing or Further .
Type o Obtained
addresses Investigation
Required
TOD 5 Verified the Risk of Leasing ToD Entire Final N/A N/A No Yes
provision for the |Error Population

Expected credit
loss as per the

ECL model along
with the

verification of
underlying

assumptions and
data.

Current Maturity of net
. s . O O O O O
investment in financial lease
Provision for Doubtful

. O O Oa O O
receivable
Net Investment in Financial

O O O O

Lease - non curreent






*RoMM - L -Low ; M- Moderate ; H- High. For MUS, the corresponding sample Reference Number will list after
each L/M/H (e.g., "L-2,4").

*Audit Misstatement or Further Investigation Required - The test of details identified an audit misstatement, or
the substantive analytical procedure required further investigation.

RoMM used for at least one sampling procedure is lower than the assessed RoMM due to error

RoMM planned for at least one sampling procedure intended to be responsive to a fraud risk is lower than the assessed RoMM due to fraud

At least one substantive procedure did not provide the anticipated audit evidence. Consider the impact on the audit approach and overall sufficiency of audit
evidence in responding to the significant risk

At least one misstatement has been identified by a test of details, or a substantive analytical procedure required further investigation. Consider the impact on the
audit approach and overall sufficiency of audit evidence in responding to the significant risk
,'9:- No misstatements have been identified for the account(s)/disclosure(s) to which this significant risk relates
,'9:- There is at least one account associated with this significant risk where a misstatement has been identified

Were there any misstatements identified that relate to the O Yes o No O Not Selected
significant risk?

(i) Document results / findings (applicable to siginficant risks and going concern risks; not applicable to financial statement level risks) and the consideration of
inconsistent or contradictory evidence in assessing management's judgments regarding accounting estimates.

Based on the procedures performed as mentioned above and documented in audit program "3.2 - Leasing" , we concluded that accounts receivables are fairly
valued by the Company.
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4.5.4.4 Revenue recognition fraud risk

(?) Detailed Description

There is a risk of fraud relating to recognition of revenue, which requires special audit consideration because of the nature of the risk and the potential for
intentional misstatements to the relevant assertions, e.g. existence and accuracy of revenue.

Fraud risk factors such as mentioned below could be present due to a condition of incentives linked to sales/profit targets or pressures from those charged with
governance to present a better results:

- There is excessive pressure on management or operating personnel to meet financial targets established by those charged with governance, including sales or
profitability goals linked to incentives.

- As the company is in the start up phase and the management is in the pressures to meet the targets and budgets and to reduce the losses to a minimum
extent.

The relevant factors giving rise to this significant risk of fraud are documented in activity 2.14.2.

We will apply additional and tailored audit approach in order to address the above risk and ET is also planning to recalculate 100% lease finance income from
customer repayment schedule.

Significant Account(s)/Disclosure(s) Estimate Risk Of Error Risk Of Fraud

Finance Lease O "] O 74| O O O 74|

Relevant factors considered in identifying the significant risk. (For fraud risks, it is not necessary to duplicate fraud risk factors documented at 2.14.2.)

There is presumed fraudulent revenue recognition risk i.e. the entity may record fraudulent revenue in order to increase its earning and to meet the expectation
of users and targets as per budget. Being the closed joint stock entity under SAMA regulations, probability for fraudulent revenue recognition is increased as the
management may try to maintain different ratios to support its defined targets.

Summary of RoMM due to error for assertions associated with the significant risk of error

Rationale if RoMM assessment is inconsistent with
Significant Account(s) / Disclosure(s) RoMM matrix and/or RoMM is assessed as Low for an
assertion associated with a significant risk

Rationale for reassessment of RoMM, including

reassessed control risk

Finance Lease N/A
T o T ) I N VS B [ B
Test of operating effectiveness? Y Y
Inherent Risk of Error S S
Initial Control Risk H H
Initial RoMM due to error H H
Reassessed RoMM due to error N/S N/S

/Al Reassessed RoMM due to error is low for at least one assertion. There is a rebuttable presumption that RoMM for assertions associated with significant risks will
be no less than moderate.

Summary of RoMM due to fraud for assertions associated with the fraud risk

Rationale if RoMM assessment is inconsistent with
Significant Account(s) / Disclosure(s) RoMM matrix and/or RoMM is assessed as Low for an
assertion associated with a significant risk

Rationale for reassessment of RoMM, including

reassessed control risk

Finance Lease N/A






Test of Operating effectiveness? Y Y
Inherent Risk of Fraud S S
Initial Control Risk H H
Initial RoMM due to fraud H H
Reassessed RoMM due to fraud N/S N/S

4. Reassessed RoMM due to fraud is low for at least one assertion. There is a rebuttable presumption that RoMM for assertions associated with significant risks will
be no less than moderate.

Approach to address the significant risk, including how the nature, timing, and extent of tests of controls, if applicable, and substantive procedures are specifically
responsive to the significant risk.

We will perform the following procedures to address the significant risk of fraud:

- Match the revenue balances with trial balances and lease amortization schedule to ensure completeness over revenue recognized. We will perform TOD for
revenue based on MUS in order to check the matching of lease amortization schedule with recognized revenue for the period.

- Perform walkthrough on revenue and will document the process and design and implementation of controls.

- Perform D&l on new customers addition in the portfolio during the year to ensure that entity has appropriate control in place to recognized revenue and controls
exist to overcome fictitious new customers by which management can manipulates in revenue recognition. Further plan to perform call back procedures for a
samples of new customers.

- Perform TOD on closed lease contracts customers in portfolio during the year to ensure that the Company has stop recognition of revenue against closed
contracts and thereby stopping fictitious revenue recognition due to fraud/ error. We have planned for checking that revenue is recognized only on current
contracts where lease amortization schedule is pertaining to the period. we are planning to perform this test based on MUS revenue TOD test.

Check calculation of unearned insurance income.
Check calculation of unearned interest income.
Verify that monthly revenue is calculated based on the IRR as per amortization tables and recorded accurately.

As per SAMA guideline revenue should not be recognition for the customers that are due more than 3 months. Check the de-recognition of revenue, if applicable.
Check how the Company start recognizing revenue again once past dues amounts are recovered.

- Re-calculate the net lease receivables balance as at 31 Dec 2020 and for a sample of transactions as per KAM ensure that the under data is accurate and to
document the difference to ensure that there is no fraudulent revenue reporting.

Adding to above we will plan substantive procedure to recalculate the amortization table for customer along with insurance and interest income for the year and
current and non current portion and will match the details with portfolio to ensure there is no fraudulent revenue reporting.

Revenue recognition of the following:

Insurance income

Interest income

and tracing the result to the underlying data of contract and recorded amount to ensure that revenue is calculated and recorded completely and risk of fraudulent
reporting is eliminated and ensure that revenue is recorded in the correct period.

- Will plan and perform test of details with the use of idea MUS to check and ensure the appropriate recognition of finance income ,admin fee, insurance income
for the year.

- Will obtain balance confirmation from customers to ensure that the balance shown by the management of the Company matches with the customer account
and no additional and/ or less revenue is booked for the year.

- Perform cutoff procedures on new and deleted customers added and left in the portfolio.

- Perform procedure to ensure that the revenue is recognised as per re-scheduled lease contract, in case of customers participating in SAMA deferred payment
program.

Testing results over controls that are intended to address the significant risk

Risk Of
Failure

Identifier Control Type of risk control addresses = Processes WCGW Nature IPE






AL For at least one assertion, there are no controls selected to address the significant risk. Evaluation of Design and Implementation of control(s) is required for a
significant risk.

=

" No control deficiencies have been associated with the assertions of account(s)/disclosure(s) to which this significant risk related

Were there any deficiencies in process/transaction level O Yes O No ® Not Selected
controls that were intended to address the significant risk?

Results of substantive procedures that are specifically responsive to the significant risk

*Audit
Type of risk Misstatement

Procedure . Evidence
Timing or Further Obtained

Investigation
Required

TOD 7 Risk of Leasing ToD MUS Final N/A Yes Yes
TOD for Revenue |Error; Risk
of Fraud

Identifier Procedure procedure

addresses Type

Finance Lease a a a O 0O O
TOD 8 Risk of Leasing ToD Entire Final N/A N/A No Yes
Lease contracts . .
. . Error; Risk Population
verifications
of Fraud

Finance Lease O v O O O O

*RoMM - L -Low ; M- Moderate ; H- High. For MUS, the corresponding sample Reference Number will list after
each L/M/H (e.g., "L-2,4").

*Audit Misstatement or Further Investigation Required - The test of details identified an audit misstatement, or
the substantive analytical procedure required further investigation.

A RoMM used for at least one sampling procedure is lower than the assessed RoMM due to error

A RoMM planned for at least one sampling procedure intended to be responsive to a fraud risk is lower than the assessed RoMM due to fraud

AL At least one substantive procedure did not provide the anticipated audit evidence. Consider the impact on the audit approach and overall sufficiency of audit
evidence in responding to the significant risk

AL At least one misstatement has been identified by a test of details, or a substantive analytical procedure required further investigation. Consider the impact on the
audit approach and overall sufficiency of audit evidence in responding to the significant risk

4L At least one substantive procedure does not address any assertions for the account(s)/disclosure(s) and the type of risk relating to this significant risk

,'?‘: No misstatements have been identified for the account(s)/disclosure(s) to which this significant risk relates

Were there any misstatements identified that relate to the 0 Yes O No O Not Selected
significant risk?

Misstatement(s) identified in relation to the significant risk

Impact on
Indicative Of  Nature, Timing
Fraud(Y/N)  and Extent of

Procedures

Description Of Misstatement Type Of Misstatement Identified During






(i) Document results / findings (applicable to siginficant risks and going concern risks; not applicable to financial statement level risks) and the consideration of
inconsistent or contradictory evidence in assessing management's judgments regarding accounting estimates.

We identified that the Company recognizing admin fee income upfront upon collection of the fee. However, as per the applicable financial reporting frame-work,
the amount has to be recognized based on the IRR.

The Management has calculated simplified straight line amortization of admin fee over the contract period and identified that there is a miss-statement effecting
opening retained earnings and net investments in finance lease receivables.

Since the amount involved were less than AMPT for the current year revenue amount, ET didn't not identified any audit miss-statement effecting net results and
revenue for the year ending 31 Dec 2020. However, the magnitude of revenue recognition for the past years were more than AMPT due to higher recognition of
admin fee revenue over the past years upon upfront recognition. This has lead to an un-corrected audit miss-statements effecting retained earnings and net
investment in finance leases (un-earned revenue, netted with gross receivables).

The identified miss-statements were not indicative of any fraud and further there are no material effect to current year results. ET has concluded that the amount
is not material and thereby included revenue recognition is appropriate and the identified miss-statements, which is less than PM, to be included in un-corrected
audit miss-statements.
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4.5.4.6 Accounting for lease modification due to participation of deferred payment programs as introduced by SAMA and Accounting of SAMA
financial assistance under government grant accounting as per IAS 20

(?) Detailed Description

In response to COVID-19, SAMA launched the Private Sector Financing Support Program (“PSFSP”) in March 2020 to provide the necessary support to the SME
sector through empowering and facilitating the financing community. The PSFSP mainly encompasses the following programs:

[0 Deferred payments program;

[ Funding for lending program;

[0 Loan guarantee program; and

[0 Point of sale (“POS”) and e-commerce service fee support program.

As part of the deferred payments program, the Company was initially required to defer payments for six months on lease contracts to the customers that qualify
as SMEs. The payment reliefs are considered as short-term liquidity support to address the borrower’s potential cash flow issues. The Company has effected the
payment reliefs by deferring the instalments falling due within the period from 14 March 2020 to 31 March 2021 for a period of twelve and half months. The
accounting impact of these changes in terms of the credit facilities has been assessed as per the requirements of IFRS 9 as modification in terms of
arrangement. The impact due to change in modification for eligible lease contracts had an additional expense of SR 7.01 million recognized in the statement of
profit or loss.

Further, in order to compensate all the related costs that the Company is expected to incur under the SAMA and other public authorities program, the Company
has received a profit free deposit of SR 54.93 million from SAMA. Out of the aforementioned profit free deposit, the Company has refunded SR 10.20 million to
SAMA in 2020. The benefit of the subsidised funding rate has been accounted for on a systematic basis, in accordance with government grant accounting
requirements. This resulted in recognition of income amounting to SR 2.07 million. The same has been recognised in the statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2020. The management has exercised certain judgements in the recognition and measurement of this grant income.

On a net basis, the Company has incurred a notional loss of SR 4.94 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: nil), related to SAMA
deferred payment program. Had the Company not entered in the SAMA deferred payment program, the loss of the Company would have reduced by the same
amount.

This program has been introduced for initial period of six months from 14 March 2020 to 14 September 2020, this program has been extended for 3 months from
15 September 2020 to 14 December 2020. During December 2020 SAMA has further extended the program till 31 March 2021.

The net loss on accounted on account of participation to SAMA deferred payment program is as follows:
a) Gain on account of fair value adjustments for interest free SAMA deposits, net SR 2,067,731

b) Loss on account modification of lease contracts payment terms SR 7,008,424

c) Net loss accounted on account of participation to SAMA deferred payment program SR - 4,940,693

Significant Account(s)/Disclosure(s) Estimate Risk Of Error Risk Of Fraud

Current Maturity of net investment in financial

O O O O O O O
lease
Loss on account of participation to SAMA

O | | | O O O | O
deferred payment program
Net Investment in Financial Lease - non

O O O O O O
curreent
Deposits from SAMA - Current o a a a 0 0 O = O
Deposits from Saudi Arabian Monetary g O O O -
Authority (SAMA)
Finance Lease 0 0 0 O O O O

Relevant factors considered in identifying the significant risk. (For fraud risks, it is not necessary to duplicate fraud risk factors documented at 2.14.2.)

The above noted transaction is un-usual transactions which SAMA has announced to mitigate the liquidity crunch in SME sector, Accordingly, accounting related
to un-usual and one-off entries may prone to risk of erros. Considering the nature of accounts, amount involved and number of contracts etc. the above
transaction is treated as significant risk.

Summary of RoMM due to error for assertions associated with the significant risk of error

Rationale if RoMM assessment is inconsistent with Rl for (e e sssmant o e, Tnelidling

reassessed control risk

Significant Account(s) / Disclosure(s) RoMM matrix and/or RoMM is assessed as Low for an
assertion associated with a significant risk






Current Maturity of net investment in
financial lease

Not applicable

Test of operating effectiveness?

N
Inherent Risk of Error S
Initial Control Risk H
Initial RoMM due to error H
Reassessed RoMM due to error N/S

Loss on account of participation to SAMA

deferred payment program

Not applicable

Test of operating effectiveness?

N N N
Inherent Risk of Error S S S
Initial Control Risk H H H
Initial RoMM due to error H H H
Reassessed RoMM due to error N/S N/S N/S

Net Investment in Financial Lease - non
curreent

Not applicable

Test of operating effectiveness? N
Inherent Risk of Error S
Initial Control Risk H
Initial RoMM due to error H
Reassessed RoMM due to error N/S

Deposits from SAMA - Current

Not applicanle

Test of operating effectiveness?

N N N
Inherent Risk of Error S S S
Initial Control Risk H H H
Initial RoMM due to error H H H
Reassessed RoMM due to error N/S N/S N/S

Deposits from Saudi Arabian Monetary
Authority (SAMA

Not applicable

Test of operating effectiveness?

N N N
Inherent Risk of Error S S S
Initial Control Risk H H H
Initial RoMM due to error H H H
Reassessed RoMM due to error N/S N/S N/S






Finance Lease N/A
| emsemcmngermieieees e efla v o [F]
Test of operating effectiveness? Y
Inherent Risk of Error S
Initial Control Risk H
Initial RoMM due to error H
Reassessed RoMM due to error N/S

£l Reassessed RoMM due to error is low for at least one assertion. There is a rebuttable presumption that RoMM for assertions associated with significant risks will
be no less than moderate.

Approach to address the significant risk, including how the nature, timing, and extent of tests of controls, if applicable, and substantive procedures are specifically
responsive to the significant risk.

We believe designed substantive procedure are specifically responsive to the significant risk:
We are planning to perform:

. Inquiry with client for options opted by customer and how the client has performed the modifications.

. Check the accounting treatment applied by the Company for modification of lease contracts are as per the applicable IFRSs.
. check the data gathering and working for modification of contract cash flows are in line with our understanding of applicable IFRSs.
. check, on a sample basis, the input data used for re-calculating the principal, cash flows and interest are accurate.

. Check accounting entry posted in the general ledger along with its approval from senior management team.

. Check amount outstanding prior and post modification is matching with the working.

. Check the disclosure related to SAMA deferment program from financial statement.

. Check customer status on samples basis to see, if they are eligible customers for deferred payment program.

9. trace the SAMA deferrment program announcement documents

10. Check the amount received from SAMA from bank statements and its repayment schedule as provided by SAMA

11. Check the fair value calculations for interest free deposits and its consistancy from quarters.

0N OB WN =

Testing results over controls that are intended to address the significant risk

Risk Of

Identifier Control Type of risk control addresses Processes WCGW Nature IPE

Failure

AL For at least one assertion, there are no controls selected to address the significant risk. Evaluation of Design and Implementation of control(s) is required for a
significant risk.

=

" No control deficiencies have been associated with the assertions of account(s)/disclosure(s) to which this significant risk related

Were there any deficiencies in process/transaction level O VYes ® No O Not Selected
controls that were intended to address the significant risk?

Results of substantive procedures that are specifically responsive to the significant risk

*Audit

Misstatement

Type of risk Procedure Evidence
Identifier Procedure procedure He Timing or Further Obtained

addresses Investigation
Required

modification loss

Net Investment in Financial
Lease - non curreent

Loss on account of participation
to SAMA deferred payment “ ¥ " O O O
program






*RoMM - L -Low ; M- Moderate ; H- High. For MUS, the corresponding sample Reference Number will list after
each L/M/H (e.g., "L-2,4").

*Audit Misstatement or Further Investigation Required - The test of details identified an audit misstatement, or
the substantive analytical procedure required further investigation.

RoMM used for at least one sampling procedure is lower than the assessed RoMM due to error

RoMM planned for at least one sampling procedure intended to be responsive to a fraud risk is lower than the assessed RoMM due to fraud

At least one substantive procedure did not provide the anticipated audit evidence. Consider the impact on the audit approach and overall sufficiency of audit
evidence in responding to the significant risk

At least one misstatement has been identified by a test of details, or a substantive analytical procedure required further investigation. Consider the impact on the
audit approach and overall sufficiency of audit evidence in responding to the significant risk

=

¥ No misstatements have been identified for the account(s)/disclosure(s) to which this significant risk relates

g

There is at least one account associated with this significant risk where a misstatement has been identified

Were there any misstatements identified that relate to the O Yes O No o Not Selected
significant risk?

(i) Document results / findings (applicable to siginficant risks and going concern risks; not applicable to financial statement level risks) and the consideration of
inconsistent or contradictory evidence in assessing management's judgments regarding accounting estimates.

Based on the procedures performed as mentioned above and documented in audit program "3.2 - Leasing" , we concluded that lease modification losses are
recorded correctly by the Company.
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kpmg

Client: GLFL

Year ended 31 December 2020

Board Audit Committee – Meeting minutes 

Prepared by: Mohamed Sameer

Reviewed by: Jabbar Jawed





Date: 3 March 2021

Time: 12 PM 

Location: Virtual (Microsoft teams)



Attendees: 

Audit Committee members:

1. Fawaz (BAC Chairman)

2. Huzami

3. Bader Kanoo



From Management: 

1. Salah AlMajthoob - CEO

2. Khalid Abdulaziz Alwasmi - Compliance Manager / acting secretary

3. Awadh - External accounts consultant 



From Audit team: 

1. Abhisek Gupta

2. Jabbar Jawed



Note:

This minute are prepared based on the briefing shard by Jabbar. 



1) Members of the BAC welcomed KPMG team and Mr. Khalid opened the discussion floor for KPMG team

2) Mr Abhisek informed that audit is substantially completed. There have been no significant changes to our audit plan and strategy. Opinion will be finalised upon the Board’s approval, subject to signed management representation letter.

3) Jabbar the briefed the audit quality parameters like (1) specialist involvement (2) materiality (3) audit approach  (4) Partner to staff ratio and fact that timely completion of audit 

4) Jabbar continued with audit focus areas and significant risk areas – (1) revenue recognition (FR) (2) ECL on lease receivables (SR) (3) Lease modification and related loss accounted in the books.



· Jabbar briefed about procedure performed on revenue recognition and conclusion that no fraud were identified during audit procedures. 



· Jabbar (JB) briefed about the ECL on lease receivables and the amount of provision booked in accounts. JJB emphasised the fact that this were the key estimates for the current year audit and 3 customers balances are defaulted and management has provided provisions based on own assessments and discussion with legal consultant and valuation undertaken by Al Abraj.



· JB mentioned that, currently the total ECL amount is covered with existing provisions. However, the provision amount will be key focused areas in forthcoming quarterly reviews. 



· JB brief about journal entry procedure and other un-predictive testing methodology used during the current year audit  and informed that no management override instances are identified. 

5) JB discussed the CY un-corrected audit miss-statements and informed that the amount involved are not material and will be included in the management representation.

6) AG touched upon new standards and updates in IFRSs and informed that there are major impacts to the Company.

7) Meeting also discussed the mandatory communication as mentioned in 4.7.0020 

8) BAC members seek certain clarification for accounting for lease modification losses and AG informed that these are only notional accounting entries based on IFRS requirements and will not leads to cash-flow losses. 

9) [bookmark: _GoBack]Meeting concluded with appreciating KPMG effort on concluding the audit on time.


1

Required communications with the Management (these communications were part of our Audit Committee Meeting on 3 March 2020)



		Type				Response

		Our draft management representation letter				We have requested certain specific representations in addition to those areas covered by our standard representation letter for the year ended 31 December 2020. Management can refer to the management representation presented to management.

		Related parties 				There were no significant matters that arose during the audit in connection with the entity's related parties. 

		Other matters warranting attention by those charged with governance				There were no matters to report arising from the audit that, in our professional judgment, are significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process.

		Performance improvement observations				There were no matter to be communicated to management in writing relating to performance improvement observations. 

		Modifications to auditor’s report				None (Other than the Emphasis of Matter para and other legal non compliance paragraph).

		Actual or suspected fraud, noncompliance with laws or regulations or illegal acts				No actual or suspected fraud involving group or component management, employees with significant roles in internal control, or where fraud results in a material misstatement in the financial statements were identified during the audit.



		Type				Response

		Significant difficulties				No significant difficulties were encountered during the audit.

		Disagreements with management or scope limitations				The engagement team had no disagreements with management and no scope limitations were imposed by management during the audit.

		Other information				No other information is applicable to report and identify any material inconsistencies.

		Breaches of independence 				No matters to report. The engagement team [and others in the firm, as appropriate, the firm and, when applicable, KPMG member firms] have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence.

		Accounting practices 
				Over the course of our audit, we have evaluated the appropriateness of the Company‘s accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures. In general, we believe these are appropriate. 

		Significant matters discussed or subject to correspond-dence with management				No significant matters were identified arising from the audit which were required to be discussed with management.
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Note

		

		31 December 2020

		

		31 December 2019



		ASSETS

		

		

		

		

		



		Non-current assets

		

		

		

		

		



		Net investment in finance leases

		3

		

		68,596,869

		

		56,560,352



		Investment

		4

		

		892,850

		

		892,850



		Intangible assets

		5

		

		687,962

		

		790,804



		Property and equipment

		6

		

		343,882

		

		253,430



		Total non-current assets

		

		

		70,521,563

		

		58,497,436



		Current assets

		

		

		

		

		



		Current portion of net investment in finance leases

		3

		

		32,979,873

		

		35,247,500



		Prepayments and other receivables

		

		

		3,006,903

		

		3,848,110



		Cash and cash equivalents 

		7

		

		122,684,153

		

		94,273,112



		Total current assets

		

		

		158,670,929

		

		133,368,722



		TOTAL ASSETS     

		

		

		229,192,492

		

		191,866,158



		

		

		

		

		

		



		SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

		

		

		

		

		



		SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

		

		

		

		

		



		Share capital                                                                                                                                                                                                             

		9

		

		100,000,000

		

		100,000,000



		Additional equity contribution 

		

		

		90,644,283

		

		90,644,283



		Accumulated losses

		

		

		(8,882,773)

		

		(2,087,491)



		TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

		

		

		181,761,510

		

		188,556,792



		

LIABILITIES

		

		

		

		

		



		Non-current liabilities

		

		

		

		

		



		Employees’ end of service benefits

		10

		

		229,065

		

		166,848



		Deposits from Saudi Central Bank (SAMA)

		18.1

		

		23,072,102

		

		-



		Total non-current liabilities

		

		

		23,301,167

		

		166,848



		

		

		

		

		

		



		Current liabilities

		

		

		

		

		



		Trade payables

		

		

		84,404

		

		577,563



		Accrued expenses and other liabilities

		11

		

		502,858

		

		373,888



		Provision for Zakat 

		12

		

		1,132,728

		

		900,560



		Due to related parties

		8

		

		197,078

		

		174,498



		Current portion of deposits from Saudi Central Bank (SAMA) 

		

18.1

		

		

19,589,379

		

		

-



		Advance from customers

		

		

		2,623,368

		

		1,116,009



		Total current liabilities

		

		

		24,129,815

		

		3,142,518



		TOTAL LIABILITIES

		

		

		47,430,982

		

		3,309,366



		TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND 

   LIABILITIES

		

		

		229,192,492

		

		191,866,158







		

		

		

		

		



		Director

		

		Chief Executive Officer

		

		Chief Financial Officer





   

The accompanying notes from 1 to 20 appearing on pages 6 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.


		

		



Note

		

		2020

		

		2019



		INCOME

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		



		Income from operations

		

		

		

		

		



		Finance lease income

		

		

		9,520,635

		

		8,952,213



		Income from other activities

		

		

		

		

		



		Other income 

		13

		

		1,707,172

		

		2,460,166



		Total income

		

		

		11,227,807

		

		11,412,379



		

		

		

		

		

		



		EXPENSES

		

		

		

		

		



		Loss on account of participation to SAMA deferred payment program 

		18.2

		

		(4,940,693)

		

		-



		Salaries and other employee related expenses

		

		

		(5,301,141)

		

		(3,760,867)



		Legal and professional charges

		

		

		(1,352,845)

		

		(1,057,724)



		Rent and related expenses

		15

		

		(560,771)

		

		(350,734)



		Depreciation charge

		6

		

		(180,857)

		

		(161,517)



		Amortization charge

		5

		

		(102,842)

		

		(182,264)



		Provision for investment in finance leases

		3

		

		(3,912,249)

		

		(806,989)



		Other general and administration expenses

		

		

		(383,372)

		

		(1,036,202)



		Insurance expense

		

		

		(1,009,719)

		

		(676,112)



		Total expenses

		

		

		(17,744,489)

		

		(8,032,409)



		Profit / (loss) before Zakat

		

		

		(6,516,682)

		

		3,379,970



		Zakat expense 

		12

		

		(232,168)

		

		2,417,619



		Profit / (loss) for the year

		

		

		(6,748,850)

		

		5,797,589



		

		

		

		

		

		



		Other comprehensive income 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

		

		

		

		

		



		· Re-measurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit plans

		10

		

		(46,432)

		

		5,039



		Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year

		

		

		(46,432)

		

		5,039



		Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year

		

		

		

(6,795,282)

		

		

5,802,628



		

		

		

		

		

		



		Earnings per share – basic and diluted

		14

		

		(0.68)

		

		0.58











 

		

		

		

		

		



		Director

		

		Chief Executive Officer

		

		Chief Financial Officer
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The accompanying notes from 1 to 20 appearing on pages 6 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2



		

		Share capital

		Additional equity contribution

		
Accumulated losses

		Total



		

Balance at 1 January 2019

		

100,000,000

		

90,644,283

		

(7,890,119)

		

182,754,164



		

		

		

		

		



		Profit for the year

		-

		-

		5,797,589

		5,797,589



		Other comprehensive income for the year

		-

		-

		5,039

		5,039



		Total comprehensive income for the year

		-

		-

		5,802,628

		5,802,628



		

		

		

		

		



		Balance at 31 December 2019

		100,000,000

		90,644,283

		(2,087,491)

		188,556,792



		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		



		Balance at 1 January 2020

		100,000,000

		90,644,283

		(2,087,491)

		188,556,792



		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		



		Loss for the year

		-

		-

		(6,748,850)

		(6,748,850)



		Other comprehensive loss for the year

		-

		-

		(46,432)

		(46,432)



		Total comprehensive income for the year

		-

		-

		(6,795,282)

		(6,795,282)



		

		

		

		

		



		Balance at 31 December 2020

		100,000,000

		90,644,283

		(8,882,773)

		181,761,510



		

		

		

		

		

















































The accompanying notes from 1 to 20 appearing on pages 6 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Note 

		

		

2020

		

		

2019



		Cash flows from operating activities

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Profit / (loss) before Zakat

		

		

		

		(6,516,682)

		

		3,379,970



		Adjustments for:

		

		

		

		

		

		



		· Provision for investment in finance leases

		

		3

		

		3,912,249

		

		806,989



		· Lease modification loss

		

		18.2

		

		7,008,424

		

		-



		· Depreciation 

		

		6

		

		180,857

		

		161,517



		· Amortization 

		

		5

		

		102,842

		

		182,264



		· Employees’ end of service benefits 

		

		10

		

		118,645

		

		90,811



		· Gain on account of fair value adjustments for interest free SAMA deposits, net

		

		

18.2

		

		

(2,067,731)

		

		

-



		· Loss on disposal of property and equipment

		

		

		

		2,221

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		2,740,825

		

		4,621,551



		Changes in:

		

		

		

		

		

		



		· Net investment in finance leases

		

		

		

		(20,689,563)

		

		(38,895,061)



		· Prepayments and other receivables 

		

		

		

		841,207

		

		(2,920,515)



		· Due to related parties

		

		

		

		22,580

		

		63,722



		· Trade payables

		

		

		

		(493,159)

		

		434,086



		· Advance from customers

		

		

		

		1,507,359

		

		1,020,895



		· Accrued expenses and other liabilities

		

		

		

		128,970

		

		(359,708)



		Cash used in operating activities

		

		

		

		(15,941,781)

		

		(36,035,030)



		Employees’ end of service benefits paid

		

		10

		

		(102,860)

		

		(37,973)



		Zakat paid 

		

		12

		

		-

		

		(7,350)



		Net cash used in operating activities

		

		

		

		(16,044,641)

		

		(36,080,353)



		



		

		

		

		

		

		



		

Cash flows from investing activities

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Acquisition of property and equipment

		

		6

		

		(273,530)

		

		(2,600)



		Acquisition of intangible asset

		

		5

		

		-

		

		(881,251)



		Net cash used in investing activities

		

		

		

		(273,530)

		

		(883,851)



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Cash flows from financing activities

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Deposits received from SAMA

		

		18.1

		

		54,925,001

		

		-



		Repayment of deposits to SAMA

		

		18.1

		

		(10,195,789)

		

		-



		Net cash flows from financing activities

		

		

		

		44,729,212

		

		-



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 

		

		

		

		28,411,041

		

		(36,964,204)



		Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

		

		

		

		94,273,112

		

		131,237,316



		Cash and cash equivalent at end of the year 

		

		7

		

		122,684,153

		

		94,273,112























		

		

		

Note 

		

		

2020

		

		

2019



		SUPPLIMENTORY INFORMATION

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Non-cash transactions:

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Refund of Zakat adjusted to Zakat provision

		

		[bookmark: _GoBack]12

		

		-

		

		3,121,376



		Gain on account of fair value adjustments for interest free SAMA deposits, net

		

		18.2

		

		2,067,731

		

		-



		Lease modification loss

		

		18.2

		

		7,008,424

		

		-
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION



Gulf Lifting Financial Leasing Company (“the Company”) previously known as “Gulf Lifting Rental Company” is a Saudi Closed Joint Stock Company established under the Regulations for Companies in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The Company is registered in Dammam under commercial registration number 2050030896 dated 19 Shaban, 1416H corresponding to 10 January 1996G and operating under company license number 47/A Sh/201708 dated 14 Dhul Qa’dah 1438H corresponding to 6 August 2017G issued by Saudi Central Bank (formerly Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority) (“SAMA”).



The Company is engaged in the finance leasing business. The Company is effectively a wholly owned subsidiary of Yusuf Bin Ahmed Kanoo Company Limited. 



In 2013, a new Finance Lease Law was enacted in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, whereby, only licensed companies are allowed to conduct finance lease business in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Accordingly, the shareholders of the Company (i) filed application with relevant authorities to secure license to conduct finance lease business; (ii) increased the capital of the Company from SR 40 million to SR 100 million as required by the law; and (iii) resolved to transfer all the business activities and related assets and liabilities at carrying amount of operating lease business to a shareholder effective from 1 January 2013. During 2016, the Company received initial approval of the acceptance of application from the Saudi Central Bank (formerly Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority) (SAMA).

 

During 2016, the shareholders of the Company resolved to change the name of the Company from Gulf Lifting Rental Company to Gulf Lifting Financial Leasing Company. Further, the Company was converted from Limited Liability Company into a Closed Joint Stock Company in accordance with Ministerial Resolution number 287/Q dated 27 Dhul Qa’dah 1437H, corresponding to 30 August 2016. The legal formalities associated with the change in name and legal status of the Company were completed during 2016. 



In view of the change in legal status, the shareholders also resolved to (i) convert statutory reserve and retained earnings to additional equity contribution at 30 August 2016 amounting to SR 90.65 million and (ii) transfer the assets, liabilities and activities of the Company to Closed Joint Stock Company. 



The Company has received license from SAMA for practice of finance lease business in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia on 14 Dhul Qa’dah 1438H corresponding 6 August 2017G.



2. BASIS OF PREPARATION, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES 



2.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements are prepared by the Company in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements issued by the Saudi Organization for Certified Public Accountants (“SOCPA”). 



2.2 Basis of measurement

These financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis of accounting except for investment which is measured at fair value and employees’ end of service benefits which is measured at projected unit credit method.



2.3 Functional and presentation currency

Items included in these financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates. These financial statements are presented in Saudi Riyals (SR) which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. All financial information presented in Saudi Riyals has been rounded to the nearest Riyal, unless otherwise stated.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES (Continued)



2.4 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the Company’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognised prospectively.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for the year ended 31 December 2020 includes:

	i. Impairment of financial assets								

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECL) on financial assets measured at amortized cost. The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

Loss allowances for lease receivable and contract assets are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

· the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the Company to actions such as realizing security (if any is held); or

· the financial asset is 90 days or more past due. 

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

ii. Employees’ end of service benefits 

The cost of end of service defined benefit and the present value of the related obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions which may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, withdrawal before normal retirement age, mortality rates etc. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, yield and duration of Saudi government bonds obligation with at least an ‘A’ rating or above, as set by an internationally acknowledged rating agency, and extrapolated as needed along the yield curve to correspond with the expected term of the defined benefit obligation. The underlying bonds are further reviewed for quality. Those having excessive credit spreads are removed from the analysis of bonds on which the discount rate is based, on the basis that they do not represent high quality bonds.



Age-wise “High” withdrawal rates are used in carrying out the valuation.  These age-wise withdrawal rates are generally used in the MENA region to carry out the actuarial valuation of end of service benefit schemes of companies operating in leasing business.





2. BASIS OF PREPARATION, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

2.4 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions (Continued)

ii. Employees’ end of service benefits (Continued)

The rates assumed are based on the WHO 15 Ultimate mortality tables, rated down one year. In the absence of any standard mortality tables in the region, these rates are generally used in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia in carrying out the actuarial valuation of EOSB Schemes. If any other mortality table is used it will not make any significant difference in the results.



iii. Useful lives of property and equipment and intangible assets

Management determines the estimated useful lives of property and equipment and intangible assets for calculating depreciation and amortisation. This estimate is determined after considering expected usage of the assets and physical wear and tear. Management reviews the residual value and useful lives annually and change in depreciation charges and amortisation charges, if any, are adjusted in current and future periods.



iv. Measurement of fair values

Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.



When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

· Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

· Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

· Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).



If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

v. Zakat

The Company is subject to Zakat in accordance with the General Authority of Zakat and Tax (“GAZT”) regulations. Zakat computation involves relevant knowledge and judgment of the Zakat rules and regulations to assess the impact of Zakat liability at a particular period end. This liability is considered an estimate until the final assessment by GAZT is carried out until which the Company retains exposure to additional Zakat liability.



vi. Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non- financial assets to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.



For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into smallest group of assets that generated cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of cash inflows of other assets.



The recoverable amount of an asset is greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate. 

 

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.











2. BASIS OF PREPARATION, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

2.5 Standards, new pronouncements and interpretations



New and revised standards with no material effect on the financial statements

The following revised IFRSs have been adopted. The application of these revised IFRSs did not have any material impact on the amounts reported for current and prior periods.



· Definition of a Business (Amendments to IFRS 3), effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

· Definition of Material (Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8), effective for annual periods beginning on or after       1 January 2020.

· Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7), effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

· Amendments to references to conceptual framework in IFRS standards, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

· Extension of the Temporary Exemption from Applying IFRS 9 (Amendments to IFRS 4), effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.



New and revised standards issued but not yet effective

The Company has not early adopted the following new and revised standards that have been issued but are not yet effective:



· COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendments to IFRS 16), effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

· Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16), effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

· Onerous Contracts – Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37), effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

· Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020, effective for annual periods beginning on or after                    1 January 2022.

· Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16), effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

· Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3), effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

· IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

· Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to IAS 1), effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

· Amendments to IFRS 17, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

· Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28) with effective annual period yet to be determined.



The above-mentioned standards are not expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.















2. BASIS OF PREPARATION, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES (Continued)



2.6 Changes in accounting policies 

The Company has applied the requirements of IAS 20 – Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance accounting principle for SAMA deposits received during the year 2020 (refer note 18). Upon recognising the SAMA deposits the Company has applied below accounting policies: 



Government grant

The Company recognises a government grant related to income, if there is a reasonable assurance that it will be received and the Company will comply with the conditions associated with the grant. The benefit of a government deposit at a below-market rate of profit is treated as a government grant related to income. The below-market rate deposit is recognised and measured in accordance with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. The benefit of the below-market rate of interest is measured as the difference between the initial fair value of the deposit determined in accordance with IFRS 9 and the proceeds received. The benefit is accounted for in accordance with IAS 20. The government grant is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a systematic basis over the period in which the Company recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grant is intended to compensate. 



2.7 Accounting policies

Following accounting policies have been applied in preparation of these financial statements. These policies have been applied consistently for all period presented, except for those disclosed in note 2.6



2.7.1 Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.



Capital work in progress is stated at cost less impairment losses, if any, and is not depreciated until the asset is brought into commercial operations and available for intended use.



Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Cost incurred to replace a component of an item of property and equipment is capitalized and the asset so replaced is retired from use. All other repairs and maintenance expenditure are charged to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income during the period in which they are incurred.



Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method over its estimated useful life of the assets as mentioned below, after taking into account their respective residual value.



		

		Number of years



		Leasehold improvements

		5



		Office furniture and fixtures

		5-7



		Information technology equipment

		4







All assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.



Gains and losses on disposal of property and equipment, if any, are taken to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.



The assets residual values, useful life and methods are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date.





2. BASIS OF PREPARATION, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

2.7 Accounting policies (Continued)

2.7.2 Intangible assets

Intangible assets, including Enterprise Resources Planning (“ERP”) software acquired by the Company and have finite useful life are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is calculated to write-off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values using the straight-line method over their estimated useful life, and is generally recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 

Amortization methods, useful life and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate. 





2.7.3 Leases 



I. As a lessor



Net investment in finance leases 

The Company leases out heavy machinery and automobile to corporate customers. Leases in which the Company transfers control incidental to the ownership of an asset to the lessee are classified as finance leases. Finance lease are recorded at the inception of the lease at the lower of fair value of the leased assets and the present value of the minimum lease payments. At the end of lease-term the Company transfers the title of underlying assets to the lessee. 



Gross investment in finance leases include the total of future lease payments on finance leases (lease receivables), plus estimated residual amounts receivable. The difference between the lease receivables and the cost of the leased asset is recorded as unearned lease finance income and for presentation purposes, is deducted from the gross investment in finance leases. The Company takes down payments on leases with the right to set off against the residual value of leased assets and for presentation purposes, these down payments along with prepaid lease rentals are deducted from gross investment in finance leases. The Company has applied IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” to allocate consideration in the contract to each lease and non-lease component. 



II. As a lessee 

The Company leases office building. As a lessee, the Company previously classified leases as operating or finance leases based on its assessment of whether the lease transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership. Under IFRS 16, the Company recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for most leases - i.e. these leases are on-balance sheet. 



Significant accounting policies

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, and subsequently at cost less any accumulated depreciation, impairment losses and adjusted for certain remeasurement of the lease liability. 



The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and decreased by lease payment made. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, a change in the estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or as appropriate, changes in the assessment of whether a purchase or extension option is reasonably certain to be exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not to be exercised.



The Company has applied judgement to determine the lease term for some lease contracts in which it is a lessee that include renewal options. The assessment of whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise such options impacts the lease term, which significantly affects the amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets recognised.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

2.7 Accounting policies (Continued)

2.7.4 Provisions 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.



Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognized as finance cost.



2.7.5 Zakat

Zakat is provided on accrual basis in accordance with the Regulations of the General Authority of Zakat and Tax (the “GAZT”) in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and on accrual basis. Zakat is charged to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 



2.7.6 Expenses

Expenses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when decrease in future economic benefit related to a decrease in an asset or an increase in a liability has arisen that can be measured reliably.  Expenses are recognized on the basis of a direct association between the costs incurred and the earning of specific items of income; on the basis of systematic and rational allocation procedures when economic benefits are expected to arise over the accounting period. Expenses are analysed based on their nature.



2.7.7 Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

i) Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified and measured at amortized cost, FVOCI or FVTPL.



Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model.



a) Financial assets at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:



· the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

· the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and profit on the principal amount outstanding.



The financial instruments not measured at fair value are short-term financial assets and financial liabilities whose carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value.



Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits with banks and other short term investments in an active market with original maturities of three months or less. 



The Company classify cash and cash equivalents, finance lease receivables and other receivables as financial assets at amortized cost.



2. BASIS OF PREPARATION, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

2.7 Accounting policies (Continued)

2.7.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)



b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”)

A financial asset is measured at fair value through FVOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL.



· it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

· its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principle and profit on the principle amount outstanding.



On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis. The Company does not have any financial assets that are designated at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).



c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.



Business model assessment

The Company assesses the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to management. The information considered includes:



· the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. In particular, whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of the liabilities or expected cash outflows or realizing cash flows through the sale of the assets;

· how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported;

· the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

· how managers of the business are compensated- e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

· the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its expectations about future sales activity. However, information about sales activity is not considered in isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the Company's stated objective for managing the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are realized.

Transfer of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered sales for the purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL. 





2. BASIS OF PREPARATION, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

2.7 Accounting policies (Continued)

2.7.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

i) Financial assets (Continued)

Business model assessment (Continued)



The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking 'worst case' or 'stress case' scenarios into account.



If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that is different from the Company's original expectations, the Company does not change the classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business model, but incorporates such information when assessing newly purchased financial assets going forward.

Financial assets that are held for trading and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL because they are neither held to collect contractual cash flows nor held both to collect contractual cash flows and to sell financial assets.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, “principal” is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. ‘interest ‘ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular  period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers;

· contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

· terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features;

· prepayment and extension features; and 

· terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features)

A prepayment feature is consistent with solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a discount or premium to its contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

ii) Financial liabilities



Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Other financial liabilities (including loans and borrowings and accounts and other payables) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange losses are recognized in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 
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2.7 Accounting policies (Continued)

2.7.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

ii) Financial liabilities (Continued)



Effective interest method 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition. For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is calculated by discounting the estimated future cash flows, including expected credit losses, to the amortized cost of the debt instrument on initial recognition.

Fair value measurement 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:	

-  In the principal market for the asset or liability, or					

-  In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability



When available, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted prices in an active market for that instrument.  A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an on-going basis. The Company measures instruments quoted in an active market as per the official closing price in the related stock exchange where the instrument is traded.



If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Company uses valuation techniques that maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.



The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.



Derecognition



Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flow from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.



On derecognition of the financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset that is derecognized) and the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Any interest in such transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Company is recognized as a separate asset or liability.
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2.7 Accounting policies (Continued)

2.7.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

Financial liability

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognized on fair value.



On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non- cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when, and only when, the Company has legally enforceable right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.



Income and expenses are presented on a net basis for gain and losses from financial instruments at FVTPL and foreign exchange gains and losses.



iii) Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9 replaces the 'incurred loss' model with an 'expected credit loss' model (ECL). IFRS 9 requires the Company to record an allowance for ECLs for all loans and other debt financial assets not held at FVTPL, together with loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts. The allowance is based on the ECLs associated with the probability of default in the next twelve months unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination. If the financial asset meets the definition of purchased or originated credit impaired (POCI), the allowance is based on the change in the ECLs over the life of the asset. 

Under IFRS 9, credit losses are recognized earlier than under previous accounting standard. 



The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for finance lease receivables.



To measure the expected credit losses, finance lease receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating the ECL’s, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward- looking information.



The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:



· the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligation to the Company in full, without recourse by the Company to actions such as realizing security (if any is held); or 

· the financial asset is 90 days or more past due. 



Life time ECLs are the ECLs that result from default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

The Maximum credit period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.
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2.7 Accounting policies (Continued)

2.7.7 Financial instruments (Continued)



Measurement of Expected Credit Losses:

ECLs are a probability – weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i-e the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and cash flows that the company expects to receive).

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.



Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost and debt securities at FVOCI (if any) are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

· due to significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

· a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due;

· the restructuring of a finance lease receivable by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider otherwise;

· it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or

· the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.



Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets. For debt securities at FVOCI (If any), the loss allowance is charged to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.



Write off:

The Company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and there is sufficient evaluation that collection will not be possible, for example when counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the Company’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.



2.7.8 Impairment of Non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its non- financial assets to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into smallest group of assets that generated cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of cash inflows of other assets.

The recoverable amount of an asset is greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre- tax discount rate based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted their present value using a pre-tax discount rate the reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the assets.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. They are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (If any), and then reduce the carrying amount of other assets on pro rata basis. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed, for other assets, an impairment less is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

2.7 Accounting policies (Continued)



2.7.9 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and at banks including investments with original maturity of less than three months from the contract date. 



2.7.10 Proposed dividend and transfer between reserves

Dividends and appropriations to reserves, except appropriations which are required by law, made subsequent to the statement of financial position date are considered as non-adjusting events and are recorded in the financial statements in the year in which they are approved and transfers are made.



2.7.11 Revenue recognition-Finance leases

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. Interest income is included in finance income in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.



Service fees charged in respect incidental services are recognized over the period of contract. 



2.7.12 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of special commission expense and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.



2.7.13 Statutory reserve

As required by Saudi Arabian Regulations for Companies and the Company’s By-laws, 10% of the income for the period should be transferred to the statutory reserve. This reserve is not available for distribution. As per the By-laws, the Company may resolve to discontinue such transfers when the reserve totals 30% of the paid up share capital.



2.7.14 Employee benefits

i) Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

ii) Employees' end-of-service benefits liabilities 

The Company operates a non-funded employee end-of-service benefit plan, which is classified as defined benefit obligation under IAS 19 'Employee Benefits'. A defined benefit plan is a plan which is not a defined contribution plan. The defined benefit obligation is calculated by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in full in the period in which they occur in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Such actuarial gains and losses are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.



Past service costs are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on the earlier of:

· The date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

· The date on which the Company recognizes related restructuring costs



Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability. The Company recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under ‘salaries and related expenses’ and ‘finance cost’ in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income:
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2.7 Accounting policies (Continued)



· Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements 

· Net interest expense or income



The defined benefit liability comprises the present value of the defined benefit obligation, less past service costs. 



3. NET INVESTMENT IN FINANCE LEASES

		

		2020

		

		  2019



		

		

		

		



		Gross investment in finance lease

		130,261,165

		

		112,145,550



		

		

		

		



		Less: Unearned finance lease income

		(22,500,276)

		

		(18,065,800)



		Net investment in finance leases

		107,760,889

		

		94,079,750



		

		

		

		



		Provision for lease losses

		(6,184,147)

		

		(2,271,898)



		

		101,576,742

		

		91,807,852



		Current maturity

		(32,979,873)

		

		(35,247,500)



		

		68,596,869

		

		56,560,352







	As at 31 December 2020, net investments in finance leases includes receivable from two delinquent customers amounting to SR 15,354,339 (2019: 15,354,339). The Company initiated legal proceedings for recovering these receivables. These receivables are secured by way of promissory notes and the title deeds of underlying leased assets are also in the name of the Company. Further, the management is confident that the cases will be settled in favour of the Company. 



Management by taking into account all facts and circumstances has assessed that the likelihood of succeeding the legal proceedings are reasonably high, therefore, current provision is sufficient to absorb any foreseeable losses on such receivables.



3.1   The movement in the provision for lease losses was as follows:

		

		

2020

		

		 

2019



		

		

		

		



		Balance at the beginning of the year

		2,271,898

		

		1,464,909



		Allowance for the year

		3,912,249

		

		806,989



		Balance at the end of the year

		6,184,147

		

		2,271,898





 

3.2   The maturity of the gross investment in finance leases as at 31 December 2020 is as follows:

		

		Gross investment in finance leases

		

		Unearned finance lease income

		

		Net investment in finance leases



		

		

		

		

		

		



		Not later than one year

		 44,064,542 

		

		 11,084,669 

		

		 32,979,873 



		One to two years

		 44,125,718 

		

		 6,947,358 

		

		 37,178,360 



		Two to three years

		 24,855,664 

		

		 3,242,556 

		

		 21,613,108 



		Three to four years

		 10,826,637 

		

		 1,059,573 

		

		 9,767,064 



		Four to five years

		 6,388,604 

		

		 166,120 

		

		 6,222,484 



		

		130,261,165

		

		22,500,276

		

		107,760,889







3. NET INVESTMENT IN FINANCE LEASES (Continued)

         The maturity of the gross investment in finance leases as at 31 December 2019 is as follows:

		

		

Gross investment in finance leases

		

		Unearned finance lease income

		

		Net investment in finance leases



		

		

		

		

		

		



		Not later than one year

		44,388,359

		

		9,140,859

		

		35,247,500



		One to two years

		37,657,510

		

		5,827,779

		

		31,829,731



		Two to three years

		20,483,835

		

		2,491,868

		

		17,991,967



		Three to four years

		6,901,281

		

		552,912

		

		6,348,369



		Four to five years

		2,714,565

		

		52,382

		

		2,662,183



		

		112,145,550

		

		18,065,800

		

		94,079,750







4. INVESTMENT



Based on the instructions of Saudi Central Bank (formerly Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority) (“SAMA”) in the month of December 2017 a new entity was incorporated to register the leasing contracts in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia called “Saudi for leasing registration (“the Investee”). SAMA instructed all leasing companies and banks to contribute to the capital of the new investee. The Company contributed SR 892,850 in December 2017. In 2018, the Company has received 89,285 shares (2% of total shares) and classified the investment as fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).



5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS



Intangible asset represents license for software. 

		

		2020

		

		2019



		Cost:

		

		

		



		1 January 

		2,195,501

		

		1,314,250



		Additions

		-

		

		881,251



		31 December

		2,195,501

		

		2,195,501



		

Accumulated amortization:	

		

		

		



		1 January

		1,404,697

		

		1,222,433



		Charge for the year

		102,842

		

		182,264



		31 December 	

		1,507,539

		

		1,404,697



		

		

		

		



		Carrying amounts:

		

		

		



		31 December 

		687,962

		

		790,804











6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT



		

		

		

		Leasehold improvements 

		

		Office furniture and fixtures 

		

		Information technology equipment

		

		Total



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Cost:

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		1 January 2019

		228,797

		

		162,495

		

		323,160

		

		714,452



		Additions during the year

		-

		

		-

		

		2,600

		

		2,600



		31 December 2019

		228,797

		

		162,495

		

		325,760

		

		717,052



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		1 January 2020

		228,797

		

		162,495

		

		325,760

		

		717,052



		Additions during the year

		132,700

		

		-

		

		140,830

		

		273,530



		Disposals during the year

		-

		

		-

		

		(2,856)

		

		(2,856)



		31 December 2020

		361,497

		

		162,495

		

		463,734

		

		987,726



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Accumulated depreciation:

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		1 January 2019

		

		

		112,872

		

		43,569

		

		145,664

		

		302,105



		Charge for the year

		

		

		57,201

		

		23,212

		

		81,104

		

		161,517



		31 December 2019

		

		

		170,073

		

		66,781

		

		226,768

		

		463,622



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		1 January 2020

		170,073

		

		66,781

		

		226,768

		

		463,622



		Charge for the year

		61,526

		

		23,213

		

		96,118

		

		180,857



		Related to disposals

		-

		

		-

		

		(635)

		

		(635)



		31 December 2020

		231,599

		

		89,994

		

		322,251

		

		643,844



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Carrying amounts:

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		31 December 2020

		129,898

		

		72,501

		

		141,483

		

		343,882



		31 December 2019

		58,724

		

		95,714

		

		98,992

		

		253,430
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7. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

		  

31 December 2019

		

		

31 December 2020

		



		1,418

		

		180

		 Cash in hand



		1,894,590

		

		18,962,725

		 Cash at bank



		92,377,104

		

		103,721,248

		 Short term deposits



		94,273,112

		

		122,684,153

		





									

Short term bank deposits are denominated in Saudi Riyals and United States Dollars with local banks and are made for varying periods from 1 month to 3 month and carry interest rates ranging from (0.10% to 2.00%) per annum (2019: 1.4% to 2.9%).



8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Related parties represented shareholder, directors and key management personnel of the Company, and entity controlled or significantly influenced by such parties: 



The Company is required to pay remuneration to the members of Board of Directors, under Bye-Laws, for participation in Board of Director’s meeting held during the period, all the directors have waived their right to receive the remuneration. 



Prices and terms of payment with related parties are approved by the management. Amount due to related parties are disclosed in the statement of financial position.



		Transactions with related party

		



2020

		

		

2019



		

		

		

		



		Yusuf Bin Ahmed Kanoo Company Limited – a shareholder

		

		

		



		     Reimbursement of expenses 

		30,173

		

		10,919



		     Collections made on behalf of the Company

		-

		

		2,288,758







		AXA Cooperative Insurance Company – other related party

		

		

		



		 Purchase of insurance



		1,043,814

		

		791,889







		Kanoo Travels – other related party

		

		

		



		 Purchase of travel tickets 



		3,271

		

		41,309







Key management personnel compensation comprised of the following transactions:

		

		

2020

		

		2019



		Transactions:

		

		

		



		Compensation of key management personnel

		1,568,208

		

		564,155



		Audit committee remuneration

		205,844

		

		210,994





Employees’ end of service benefits include an amount pertaining to key management personnel





8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (Continued)

The above mentioned significant transactions with related parties resulted in the following balances:

Due to related parties

		

		2020

		

		2019



		Yusuf Bin Ahmed Kanoo Company Limited

		148,992

		

		118,819



		AXA Cooperative Insurance Company

		2,398

		

		13,262



		Kanoo Travels

		45,688

		

		42,417



		

		197,078

		

		174,498







9. SHARE CAPITAL

The pattern of shareholding as of 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 is as follows:

		

		Percentage of ownership

		

		Number of Shares

		

		Amount SR



		Yusuf Bin Ahmed Kanoo Company Limited

		94

		

		9,400,000

		

		94,000,000



		Ali Abdulla Kanoo

		1

		

		100,000

		

		1,000,000



		Ali Abdulaziz Kanoo

		1

		

		100,000

		

		1,000,000



		Saud Abdulaziz Kanoo

		1

		

		100,000

		

		1,000,000



		Bader Abdulaziz Kanoo

		1

		

		100,000

		

		1,000,000



		Faisal Khalid Kanoo

		1

		

		100,000

		

		1,000,000



		Ahmed Fawzi Kanoo

		1

		

		100,000

		

		1,000,000



		

		100

		

		10,000,000

		

		100,000,000







10. EMPLOYEES' END OF SERVICE BENEFITS

In accordance with the provisions of IAS 19, management has carried out an exercise to assess the present value of its defined benefit obligations in respect of employees' end of service benefits payable under relevant local regulations and contractual arrangements. 

The Company recognized the benefits in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The benefit is based on employees’ final salaries and allowances and their cumulative years of service, as stated in the laws of Saudi Arabia.

The following table summarizes the components of the net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and amounts recognized in the statement of financial position.

Net benefit expense recognised in the profit or loss and other comprehensive income

		

		2020

		

		2019

		



		Included in profit or loss

		

		

		

		



		Current service cost

		112,594

		

		84,480

		



		Interest cost on benefit obligation

		6,051

		

		6,331

		



		

		118,645

		

		90,811

		



		

		

		

		

		



		Included in other comprehensive income

		

		

		

		



		Re-measurement gains and losses on obligation

		

		

		

		



		Loss / (gain) due to change in experience adjustments

		46,432

		

		(5,039)

		



		

		46,432

		

		(5,039)

		








10. EMPLOYEES' END OF SERVICE BENEFITS (Continued)

Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation:

		

		

		2020

		

		2019

		



		Balance at 1 January 

		

		166,848

		

		119,049

		



		Current service cost / charge for the year

		

		112,594

		

		84,480

		



		Interest cost

		

		6,051

		

		6,331

		



		Benefits paid 

		

		(102,860)

		

		(37,973)

		



		Actuarial gain on the obligation

		

		46,432

		

		(5,039)

		



		Balance at 31 December

		

		229,065

		

		166,848

		







Significant assumptions used in determining the post-employment defined benefit obligation includes the following:

		

		2020

		

		2019

		



		Discount rate

		1.80%

		

		2.80%

		



		Salary increase rate short term

		1.80%

		

		2.80%

		



		Mortality rates

		WHO SA16 -75%

		

		WHO SA16 -75%

		



		Rates of employee turnover

		Heavy

		

		Heavy

		







The table below illustrates the approximate impact on the defined benefit obligation if the Company were to change one key assumption, while the other actuarial assumptions remain unchanged. The sensitivity analyses below has been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on the defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period. The sensitivity analysis may not be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another.



		Sensitivity analysis

		

		2020

		

		2019



		

		

		

		

		



		Increase

		

		

		

		



		Discount rate (+50 bps)

		

		220,915

		

		161,230



		Salary increase rate (+50 bps)

		

		237,703

		

		172,829



		

		

		

		

		



		Decrease

		

		

		

		



		Discount rate (-50 bps)

		

		237,747

		

		172,860



		Salary increase rate (-50 bps)

		

		220,876

		

		161,203



		

		

		

		

		





The average duration of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period is 7.34 years (2019: 6.96 years).

 

























11. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

		

		2020

		

		2019



		[bookmark: OLE_LINK1]Accrued expenses

		200,275

		

		230,400



		Other payables

		302,583

		

		143,488



		

		502,858

		

		373,888





12. ZAKAT

a) Charge for the year

i) Zakat charge for the year ended 31 December comprises of the following:



		

		2020

		

		2019



		Zakat charge for the year

		232,168

		

		703,757



		Zakat refund

		-

		

		(3,121,376)



		

		232,168

		

		(2,417,619)







ii) The significant components of Zakat base for the Company are as follows:



		

		2020

		

		2019



		Shareholders’ equity

		-

		

		-



		Other adjustments

		-

		

		-



		

		-

		

		-



		Adjusted profit for the year 

		8,982,246

		

		27,301,896



		Zakat base

		8,982,246

		

		27,301,896





On 7 Rajab 1440H corresponding to 14 March 2019G, GAZT issued Zakat rules for financing activities. The rules are applicable for entities conducting financing activities for the fiscal years commenced on or after 1 January 2019. Consequently, the provision for Zakat for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 has been calculated based on the new rules.

Significant components of Zakat base of the Company principally comprise of shareholders’ equity at the beginning of the year, adjusted net income and certain other items. Some of these amounts have been adjusted in arriving at Zakat charge for the year 

b) Provision for Zakat 



The movement in provision for Zakat during the year is as follows:

		

		2020

		

		2019



		Balance at beginning of the year

		900,560

		

		3,325,529



		Add:  Charge for the year 

		232,168

		

		703,757



		Less:  Refunds

		-

		

		(3,121,376)



		Less:  Payments during the year 

		-

		

		(7,350)



		Balance at end of the year 

		1,132,728

		

		900,560







Zakat for the year is payable at 2.5% of higher of the approximate Zakat base and adjusted net income attributable to the shareholders.















12. ZAKAT (Continued)

c) Status of assessments



The Company has submitted its Zakat declarations with the General Authority of Zakat and Tax (GAZT) up to the year 2019. The Company has obtained its Zakat certificate for the year ended 31 December 2019, which is valid up to 30 April 2021.



The GAZT has issued a Zakat assessment for the year 2016 through a letter dated 11 March 2019 (ref: 026000039227) with an additional liability of Zakat amounted to SR 1,607,005. The Company has filed an objection letter against the GAZT’s assessment for the year 2016 on 6 May 2019 and received a rejection letter on 16 September 2019. Pursuant to the receipt of the rejection letter, on 14 October 2019, the Company has filed an appeal against the rejection to the General Secretariat of Tax Committees - Committee for Resolution of Tax Violations and Disputes and received a rejection ruling on 30 August 2020. Pursuant to the receipt of the rejection, on 29 September 2020, the Company has filed an appeal to the General Secretariat of Tax Committees - Appellate Committee for Tax Violations and Disputes Resolution.  The Management of the Company has assessed their position and as per their assessment it is highly likely that the case will be settled in favor of the Company.



Zakat refund

During the year 2019, pursuant to the issuance of Royal Decree (M/26) dated 20 Rabi Al-Awwal 1440H and the letter issued by GAZT dated 5 February 2019 (Ref: 1440/1/747) the Company is entitled to Zakat refund amounted to SR 3,121,376. As result of the acknowledgment by the management on 3 March 2019 GAZT has issued credit in favor of the Company.



13. OTHER INCOME 

		

		2020

		

		2019



		

		

		

		



		Interest income on short term deposits

		762,493

		

		2,434,059



		Others1

		944,679

		

		26,107



		

		1,707,172

		

		2,460,166





1Others include VAT refunds for the year 2018-2019 amounting to SR 928,558 for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).



14. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

The basic and diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the income for the year attributable to the shareholders by weighted average number of shares at the end of the year.



		Basic and diluted earnings / (loss) per share:

		2020

		

		2019



		

		

		

		



		Profit / (loss) for the year



		(6,748,850)

		

		5,797,589



		

		

		

		



		Weighted average number of outstanding shares

		

		

		



		Number of shares

		10,000,000

		

		10,000,000



		

		

		

		



		Basic and diluted (loss) / earnings per share 

		(0.68)

		

		0.58















15. LEASES

Operating lease primarily contains rental expenses for office premises and these rental contracts are for 1 year. Expenses relating to such rentals are recognized in the statement of statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The commitments for minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases are as follows:



		

		2020

		

		2019



		Expenses relating to short-term leases

		560,771

		

		350,734



		



		

		

		







		

		

		

		



		

		2020

		

		2019



		Within one year

		-

		

		226,800



		Total

		-

		

		226,800



		

		

		

		







16. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENT



The Company has no commitments and contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil), except as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements.



17. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT



Risk is inherent in the Company's activities and is managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk management is critical to the Company's continuing profitability. The Company's activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks which mainly include market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Risk management structure

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies.

Audit Committee

The audit committee is appointed by the Board of Directors. The audit committee assists the Board in carrying out its responsibilities with respect to assessing the quality and integrity of financial reporting and risk management, the audit thereof and the soundness of the internal controls of the Company.

Internal Audit

All key operational, financial and risk management processes are audited by the Internal Audit. Internal audit examines the adequacy of the relevant policies and procedures, the Company's compliance with the internal policies and regulatory guidelines. Internal audit discusses the results of all assessments with management and reports its findings and recommendations to the Audit Committee.
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17. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Risk management structure (Continued)

Risk Committee

Board of Directors of the Company has established a risk committee. The primary responsibility of the risk committee is to oversee and approve the company-wide risk management practices to assist the board in overseeing risks, such as financial, credit, market, liquidity, security, legal, regulatory, reputational, and other risks.

The risks faced by the Company and the way these risks are mitigated by management are summarized below.



17.1 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market profit rates or the market prices of securities due to change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities and liquidity in the market.

Market risk comprises of two types of risk: currency risk and other price risk.

a) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial assets may fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's principal transactions are carried in Saudi Riyals. Management believes that there is minimal risk of significant losses due to exchange rate fluctuations as the majority of the monetary assets and liabilities are in Saudi Riyals or currencies which are pegged to the Saudi Riyal and consequently the Company does not hedge its foreign currency exposure. 



b) Other price risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from special commission rate risk or currency risk) whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instruments or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Company does not have any financial instruments which are subject to other price risk.



c) Special commission rate risk

The special commission rate risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate due to changes in the market interest rates. As the Company’s financial instruments are interest at fixed rates, the Company is not subject to special commission rate risk.



17.2 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument may fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company has established procedures to manage credit exposure including evaluation of lessees’ credit worthiness, formal credit approvals, assigning credit limits, obtaining collateral such as down payments and personal guarantees. Individual lease contracts generally are for terms not exceeding sixty- months.



The credit risks on gross amounts due in relation to the investment in finance leases is mitigated by the retention of title on leased assets and down payments.

		

		2020

		

		2019



		

		

		

		



		Net investment in finance leases

		101,576,742

		

		91,840,619



		Other receivables

		2,388,559

		

		3,017,648



		Cash at bank

		122,684,153

		

		94,271,694



		

		226,649,454

		

		189,129,961







17. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)



17.2  Credit risk (Continued)



a) Net investment in finance leases

The investment in finance leases generally expose to significant credit risk. Therefore, the Company has established a number of procedures to manage credit exposure including evaluation of lessees' credit worthiness, formal credit approvals, assigning credit limits, obtaining collateral and personal guarantees.



The Company follows a credit classification mechanism, primarily driven by day’s delinquency as a tool to manage the quality of credit risk of the lease portfolio. Further, the company has categorized its lease receivables into four sub categories on the basis of similar credit risk characteristics. Exposures within each credit risk category are segmented by industrial classification and an ECL rate is calculated for each segment based on the delinquency status and actual credit loss experience over the past years. These rates are multiplied by scaler factors to reflect differences between economic conditions, current conditions and management’s view of economic conditions over the expected age of the receivables.



Scalar factors are based on the country specific risk 0.98% and industry specific risk 0.5%.



Expected credit loss assessment for the lease receivables are as follows: 

		[bookmark: OLE_LINK2]

Credit impaired

		

		Impairment loss allowance

		

		Gross carrying amounts

		

		Weighted average loss rate

		

31 December 2020



		No

		

		434,234

		

		37,977,483

		

		1.14%

		Corporate



		No

		

		449,326

		

		39,297,514

		

		1.14%

		Medium enterprise 



		No

		

		443,524

		

		25,628,829

		

		1.73%

		Small enterprises



		Yes

		

		4,857,063

		

		4,857,063

		

		100%

		Credit impaired balances



		

		

		6,184,147

		

		107,760,889

		

		

		Total 







		

Credit impaired

		

		Impairment loss allowance

		

		Gross carrying amounts

		

		Weighted average loss rate

		

31 December 2019



		No

		

		402,067

		

		31,086,250

		

		1.29%

		Corporate



		No

		

		577,570

		

		44,655,258

		

		1.29%

		Medium enterprise 



		No

		

		326,706

		

		17,372,687

		

		1.88%

		Small enterprises



		Yes

		

		965,555

		

		965,555

		

		100%

		Credit impaired balances



		

		

		2,271,898

		

		94,079,750

		

		

		Total 







The Company as at 31 December 2020 has impairment loss allowance of SR 6.18 million (2019: SR 2.27 million). In addition, finance lease receivables are secured against leased assets.



The credit quality of Company's bank balances are assessed with reference to external credit worthiness which all are above investment grade rating.



b) Geographical segment analysis

The Company's operations are restricted to Kingdom of Saudi Arabia only.





17. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)





17.2 Credit risk (Continued)



c) Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements

The Company does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with its financial assets, except that the credit risk associated with the net investment in finance lease. The credit risks on net investment in finance leases are mitigated by retention of title of leased assets. Further, the Company has obtained promissory notes from lessee customers. 



d) Bank balances and other receivables

Funds are placed with banks having good credit ratings and therefore are not subject to significant credit risk. Other receivables are neither significant nor exposed to significant credit risk.



e) Concentration risk

Concentrations of credit risk arises when a number of counter-parties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be affected similarly by changes in economic, political or other conditions.



Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting a particular industry or geographical location.



The Company manages its credit risk exposure through diversification of leasing activities to ensure that there is no undue concentration of risks with individuals or groups of customers in specific locations or businesses. 



17.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Company will be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected or will face difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial liabilities as they fall due. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stress conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.



The contractual maturities of liabilities have been determined on the basis of the remaining period at the statement of financial position date to the contractual maturity date and do not take account of the effective maturities as indicated by the Company's availability of liquid funds. Management monitors the maturity profile to ensure that adequate liquidity is maintained. The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company's liabilities based on contractual undiscounted cash flows:

 

		31 December 2020

		Within 3 months

		

		3 to 12

Months

		

		1 to 5 years

		

		No fixed maturity 

		

		Total



		Liabilities

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Deposits from SAMA

		2,871,172

		

		18,117,278

		

		23,740,763

		

		-

		

		44,729,213



		Trade payables

		84,404

		

		-

		

		

		

		-

		

		84,404



		Accrued expenses and   

   other liabilities

		502,858

		

		

-

		

		

-

		

		

-

		

		502,858



		Due to related parties 

		197,078

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		197,078



		

		3,655,512

		

		18,117,278

		

		23,740,763

		

		-

		

		45,513,553









17. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)



17.3 Liquidity risk

		31 December 2019

		Within 3 months

		

		3 to 12

Months

		

		1 to 5 years

		

		No fixed maturity 

		

		Total



		Liabilities

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Trade payables

		577,563

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		577,563



		Accrued expenses and   

   other liabilities

		373,888

		

		

-

		

		

-

		

		

-

		

		373,888



		Due to related parties 

		174,498

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		174,498



		

		1,125,949

		

		-

		

		-

		

		-

		

		1,125,949







17.4 Capital risk management 

The objective of the Company when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and to maintain a strong capital base to support the sustained development of its business. The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. 



No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 December 2020.



17.5 Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date (i.e. an exit price). The Company’s financial assets consist of cash and cash equivalents, short-term deposits, finance lease receivables, due from a related party, available-for-sale investments and its financial liabilities consist of accrued expenses and other liabilities and, due to a related party.



The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are not materially different from their carrying values at the reporting date.



The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial assets:

Level 1: quoted prices in active markets for the same instrument (i.e., without modification or repackaging);

Level 2: quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and liabilities or other valuation techniques for which all significant inputs are based on observable market data; and

Level 3: valuation techniques for which any significant input is not based on observable market data

.

17. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

17.5 Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued)



		

		Carrying Amount

		

		Fair Value



		31 December 2019

		Financial assets at

amortised cost

		Mandatory at FVTPL

		FVOCI –equity investments

		Other financial liabilities

		

Total

		

		Level 1

		Level 2

		Level 3

		



Total



		Financial assets 

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Finance lease receivable

		91,840,619

		-

		-

		-

		91,840,619

		

		-

		-

		-

		-



		Other current assets

		3,017,648

		-

		-

		-

		3,017,648

		

		-

		-

		-

		-



		Cash and bank balances

		94,273,112

		-

		-

		-

		94,273,112

		

		-

		-

		-

		-



		Investment

		-

		-

		892,850

		-

		892,850

		

		-

		-

		892,850

		892,850



		Total financial assets

		189,131,379

		-

		892,850

		-

		190,024,229

		

		-

		-

		892,850

		892,850



		Financial liabilities

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Trade payables

		-

		-

		-

		577,563

		577,563

		

		-

		-

		-

		-



		Accrued expenses and other liabilities

		-

		-

		-

		373,888

		373,888

		

		-

		-

		-

		-



		Due to related parties

		-

		-

		-

		174,498

		174,498

		

		-

		-

		-

		-



		Total financial liabilities

		-

		-

		-

		1,125,949

		1,125,949

		

		-

		-

		-

		-





		

		Carrying Amount

		

		Fair Value



		31 December 2020

		Financial assets at

amortised cost

		Mandatory at FVTPL

		FVOCI –equity investments

		Other financial liabilities

		

Total

		

		Level 1

		Level 2

		Level 3

		



Total



		Financial assets 

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Finance lease receivable

		101,576,742

		-

		-

		-

		101,576,742

		

		-

		-

		-

		-



		Other current assets

		2,388,559

		-

		-

		-

		2,388,559

		

		-

		-

		-

		-



		Cash and bank balances

		122,684,153

		-

		-

		-

		122,684,153

		

		-

		-

		-

		-



		Investment

		-

		-

		892,850

		-

		892,850

		

		-

		-

		892,850

		892,850



		Total financial assets

		226,649,454

		-

		892,850

		-

		227,542,304

		

		-

		-

		892,850

		892,850



		Financial liabilities

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Deposits from SAMA

		42,661,481

		-

		-

		-

		42,661,481

		

		-

		-

		-

		-



		Trade payables

		-

		-

		-

		84,404

		84,404

		

		-

		-

		-

		-



		Accrued expenses and other liabilities

		-

		-

		-

		502,858

		502,858

		

		-

		-

		-

		-



		Due to related parties

		-

		-

		-

		197,078

		197,078

		

		-

		-

		-

		-



		Total financial liabilities

		42,661,481

		-

		-

		784,340

		43,445,821

		

		-

		-

		-

		-
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Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments that are carried in the financial statements
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18. SIGNIFICANT MATTERS DURING THE YEAR

On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organisation (“WHO”) declared the Coronavirus (“COVID-19”) outbreak as a pandemic in recognition of its rapid spread across the globe. This outbreak has also affected the GCC region including the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Governments all over the world took steps to contain the spread of the virus. Saudi Arabia in particular has implemented closure of borders, released social distancing guidelines and enforced country wide lockdowns and curfews. 



Oil prices have also witnessed significant volatility during the current period, owing not just to demand issues arising from COVID-19 as the world economies go into lockdown, but also supply issues driven by volume which had predated the pandemic. For the Company, whose operations are largely concentrated in an economy which is primarily based on oil, the economic impacts of the above events, though the scale and duration of which remains uncertain, primarily include:

    

· Significant business interruption arising from hinderance in generating new originations, travel restrictions and unavailability of personnel etc.;

· Deterioration in credit worthiness of customers in particular to those working or involved in ‘highly exposed sectors’ such as transportation, tourism, hospitality, entertainment, construction and retail; and 

· A significant increase in economic uncertainty, evidenced by more volatile asset prices and currency exchange rates, and a general decline in interest rates globally.



Collectively, these current events and the prevailing conditions require the Company to analyze the likely impact of these events on the business operations. The Board of Directors and the management of the Company have evaluated the current situation and accordingly, have activated its business continuity planning and other risk management practices to manage the potential business disruption COVID-19 outbreak may have on its operations and financial performance.



The pandemic has also required the Company to revise certain inputs and assumptions used for the determination of expected credit losses (“ECL”). These primarily revolved around adjusting macroeconomic factors such as expected oil prices and GDP and revaluating the methods of scenario construction and the underlying weightages assigned to these scenarios to estimate the likelihood and severity of these for the ECL determination. As a result, the Company has provided an additional amount of SR 3.9 million as an impairment loss. Further, the Company will continue to individually assess significant corporate exposures as more reliable data becomes available and accordingly determine if any additional ECL amounts need to be recognized. (Refer Note 3).



SAMA programs and initiatives launched

In response to COVID-19, SAMA launched the Private Sector Financing Support Program (“PSFSP”) in March 2020 to provide the necessary support to the SME sector through empowering and facilitating the financing community. The PSFSP mainly encompasses the following programs: 



· Deferred payments program;

· Funding for lending program;

· Loan guarantee program; and

· Point of sale (“POS”) and e-commerce service fee support program.



As part of the deferred payments program, the Company was initially required to defer payments for six months on lease contracts to the customers that qualify as SMEs. The payment reliefs are considered as short-term liquidity support to address the borrower’s potential cash flow issues. The Company has effected the payment reliefs by deferring the instalments falling due within the period from 14 March 2020 to 31 March 2021 for a period of twelve and half months. The accounting impact of these changes in terms of the credit facilities has been assessed as per the requirements of IFRS 9 as modification in terms of arrangement. The impact due to change in modification for eligible lease contracts had an additional expense of SR 7.01 million recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 





18. SIGNIFICANT MATTERS DURING THE YEAR (Continued)

Further, in order to compensate all the related costs that the Company is expected to incur under the SAMA and other public authorities program, the Company has received a profit free deposit of SR 54.93 million from SAMA. Out of the aforementioned profit free deposit, the Company has refunded SR 10.20 million to SAMA in 2020. The benefit of the subsidised funding rate has been accounted for on a systematic basis, in accordance with government grant accounting requirements. This resulted in recognition of income amounting to SR 2.07 million. The same has been recognised in the statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2020. The management has exercised certain judgements in the recognition and measurement of this grant income.



On a net basis, the Company has incurred a notional loss of SR 4.94 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: nil), related to SAMA deferred payment program. Had the Company not entered in the SAMA deferred payment program, the loss of the Company would have reduced by the same amount.



This program has been introduced for initial period of six months from 14 March 2020 to 14 September 2020, this program has been extended for 3 months from 15 September 2020 to 14 December 2020. During December 2020 SAMA has further extended the program till 31 March 2021.



18.1 Deposits from Saudi Central Bank (SAMA)

		

		2020

		

		2019



		

		

		

		



		Deposits received, net of refunds1

		42,661,481

		

		-



		

		

		

		



		Current

		19,589,379

		

		-



		Non-current

		23,072,102

		

		-



		

		42,661,481

		

		-







1During the year 2020, the Company have received interest free refundable deposits amounting to SR 54,925,001 from SAMA. Out the total receipts, the Company had repaid SR 10,195,789 in 2020. The carrying amount of SR 42,661,481 includes a notional net gain amounting to SR 2,067,731 due to of the benefit of the subsidised funding rate. (refer note 2.6).



18.2 Loss on account of participation to SAMA deferred payment program 

		

		2020

		

		2019



		

		

		

		



		Gain on account of fair value adjustments for interest free SAMA deposits, net

		

(2,067,731)

		

		

-



		Loss on account modification of lease contracts payment terms

		7,008,424

		

		-



		

		4,940,693

		

		-







19. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS



In the opinion of management, there have been no significant subsequent events since the year ended 31 December 2020 that would have a material impact on the financial position of the Company as reflected in these financial statements.



20. BOARD OF DIRECTORS APPROVAL



The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 20 Rajab 1442H corresponding to 4 March 2021G.


(Letterhead of Client)











KPMG Al Fozan and Partners

Certified Public Accountants

P.O. Box 4803, Al Khobar

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia



4 March 2021

Dear Sirs

[bookmark: _Ref14079489][bookmark: _Ref18823134]This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of Gulf Lifting Financial Leasing Company  (“the Company”) for the year ended 31 December 2020, comprising the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, the related statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether these financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects,  in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements issued by the Saudi Organization for Certified Public Accountants (SOCPA). 

We confirm that the representations we make in this letter are in accordance with the definitions set out in the Appendix 2 to this letter.

We confirm that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:

Financial Statements

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter dated 7 July 2020, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements issued by the Saudi Organization for Certified Public Accountants (SOCPA). (ISA 580.10) 

2. Measurement methods and significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value, are reasonable. (ISA 540.22) 

3. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which IFRSs require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.  (ISA 560.9)

4. We believe that the effects of unadjusted audit differences, summarized in the accompanying schedule (Appendix 1), accumulated by you during the current audit are immaterial to the financial statements therefore these are not adjusted. 



Information Provided

5. We have provided you with:

· access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the financial statements, such as records, documentation and other matters; 

· additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and

· unrestricted access to persons within the Company from whom you determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence.  (ISA 580.11(a))

6. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial statements.  (ISA 580.11(b))

7. We confirm the following:

i) We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. (ISA 240.39(b))LLLL

ii) Included in the Appendix 2 to this letter are the definitions of fraud, including misstatements arising from fraudulent financial reporting and from misappropriation of assets.

iii) We have disclosed to you all information in relation to:

a) Fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and that affects the Company and involves:   

· management;

· employees who have significant roles in internal control; or

· others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.  (ISA 240.39(c))

b) Allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the Company’s financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or others. (ISA 240.39(d)) 

In respect of the above, we acknowledge our responsibility for such internal control as we determine necessary for the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  In particular, we acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect fraud and error. (ISA 240.39a) 

8. We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements. (ISA 250.16).  Further, we have disclosed to you and have appropriately accounted for and/or disclosed in the financial statements in accordance with IFRSs all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements. (ISA 501.12) P

9. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Company’s related parties and all the related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware of and all related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with IFRSs that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements issued by the Saudi Organization for Certified Public Accountants (SOCPA). (ISA 550.26(a),(b)) R

	Included in the Appendix 2 to this letter are the definitions of both a related party and a related party transaction as we understand them and as defined in IAS 24. 

10. There have been no allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the Company’s financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or others.

Additional representations:(ISA 580.A10-A13)

i. 	All revenue transactions are final and there are no side agreements with customers or other terms that affects the recognised revenue in the financial statements.

ii. 	There are no liens or encumbrances on the Company’s assets.

	We confirm that we have disclosed to you all information in relation to the following matters:

· onerous contracts, i.e. those contracts under which the unavoidable costs of 	meeting the obligation exceed the economic benefits to be received under it, 	including losses arising from sale and purchase commitments that are onerous 	contracts under IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets;

· liabilities for interest on deposits and other indebtedness, including subordinated 	notes and participation loans;

· losses from transactions not recognised in the statement of financial position;

· agreements and options to buy back assets previously sold (if any), including sales with 	recourse;

· assets pledged as collateral;

· arrangements with financial institutions involving restrictions on cash balances 	and lines of credit or similar arrangements;

iii. The Company has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance, for example debt covenants.

iv. There are no formal or informal compensating balance arrangements with any of our cash and investment accounts. We have no other line of credit arrangements.

v. We have no plans or intentions that may affect the carrying amount or classification of assets and liabilities.

vi. The Company has satisfactory title to all assets.

	We confirm that we have appropriately performed impairment testing in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets including the following: 

· At the reporting date we have performed impairment testing for any asset for which there is an indication of a possible impairment or reversal of impairment at that date.  In this regard we confirm that we have appropriately assessed, at the reporting date, whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired or that an impairment should be reversed; (IAS 36.12, 111)

· We have performed the annual impairment testing of intangible assets with indefinite useful lives or under development and not yet ready for use, regardless of whether there is an indication of impairment; (IAS 36.10)

· We confirm that we have provided you with all relevant information relating to the impairment testing performed in accordance with IAS 36 and IFRS 13, including key assumptions used and judgments made. (IAS 36.7-57, IFRS 13.9-33, 61-90)

vii. We have assessed all financial assets, except those measured at fair value through profit or loss, to determine whether there is any objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more loss events that occurred subsequent to their initial recognition, and any impairments identified have been recognised in the financial statements, as appropriate. 

viii. For financial assets and receivables:(IAS 39.(c), 50D) 



	We confirm that we have disclosed information relating to the Company’s exposures to risks arising from financial instruments that is adequate to enable users to evaluate the nature and extent of those risks to which the Company is exposed at the end of the reporting period, in accordance with IFRS 7, including the exposures to risks and how they arise, our objectives, policies and procedures for managing the risks, the methods used to measure risks, and a summary of quantitative data about our exposure to risks. (IFRS 7.31, 32)



· Significant concentrations of credit risk arising from all financial instruments and information about the collateral supporting such financial instruments have been appropriately disclosed in the financial statements. (IFRS 7.34)

· Further, the quantitative data disclosed are representative of the Company’s exposure to risks arising from financial instruments during the period. (IFRS 7.34, 35)

· There are no outflows of cash that could occur significantly earlier than indicated in the summary quantitative data about exposure to liquidity risk, or that could be for significantly different amounts from those included in that data except as disclosed in the Company’s financial statements.

· We have excluded remaining contractual maturities of derivative financial liabilities from disclosure only when contractual maturities are not essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash flows. (IFRS 7.39(b))

ix. We believe the assumptions and techniques used by us are appropriate and that all fair value measurements are determined in accordance with IFRS 13. 

	In circumstances where the fair value of a financial asset or liability at initial recognition is different from the transaction price, we have immediately recognised a gain or loss equal to the difference in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income if and only if the fair value measurement is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability, or is based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets. If the fair value measurement at initial recognition does not meet either of these conditions, then the difference is deferred and subsequently recognised as a gain or loss only to the extent it arises from a change in a factor (including time) that market participants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability. (IAS 39.AG76-AG76A – or, if IFRS 9 has been adopted, IFRS 9.B5.1.2A,2.2A)



x. We have appropriately disclosed fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities in the financial statements in accordance with IFRS 13.  We believe the disclosures appropriately categorise those fair value measurements in the fair value hierarchy. (IFRS 13.91-99).

xi. We have disclosed the methods and assumptions applied in determining the fair values of each class of financial instrument. (IFRS 13.93-94).  

xii. We confirm that all post-employment benefit plans have been identified, properly classified and accounted for, either as defined benefit or defined contribution plans in accordance with IAS 19 Employee Benefits.  There are no other plans. (IAS 19.27-30)

We confirm that the Company has conducted actuarial valuation of employees’ end of service liability as per the requirements of IAS 19 Employee benefits, and all the related adjustments have been incorporated in the financial statements.

xiii. We confirm that we have disclosed to you our assessment of the Company’s exposures to risks related to Zakat, that we have appropriately accounted for such risks and that we have disclosed information that is adequate to enable users to evaluate the nature and extent of the risks to which the Company is exposed at the end of the reporting period.   (IFRS 3.37-40, 22-31, B20, IFRS 13.9-90)

xiv. We confirm that we have provided you with all relevant information regarding the following:

a) judgments management has made in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements, including: (IAS 1.122)  

· classification and reclassification of financial instruments; (IAS 39.9, 45, 47, 50-54, 32.1 or, if IFRS 9 has been adopted; IFRS 9.4, B4) (IAS 40.14) 

b) key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the date of the statement of financial position, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, including: (IAS 1.125) 

· major assumptions concerning future events affecting provisions and contingent liabilities made under IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; (IAS 37.85(b)) (IFRIC 12.15, IFRS 13.9-26, 61-90) (IAS 8.30, 31)

xv. Net investment in finance leases and receivables reported in the financial statements represent valid claim against the lessee customers for leasing on or before the balance sheet date, and do not include charges for post balance sheet date finance lease revenues.

We confirm that all net investment in finance leases and receivables amounts will be collected in full and no additional loss is anticipated in this respect which needs to be provided for in the financial statements.

Adequate allowance for impairment has been recorded for expected credit losses to state the receivable balances at realizable value in the financial statements.

xvi. We confirm that we are aware of the present global business crisis and its impact, if any, on the financial position of the Company. We further confirm that we have reviewed the situation and there is no need for any adjustment in the valuation of assets and liabilities and related presentation and disclosures to be made in these financial statements to account for the impact of global crisis affected to the business of the Company.

We are aware of the widespread outbreak of COVID-19 is causing significant macro-economic uncertainty. The scale and duration of this development remains uncertain. 



We confirm that, in response to the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic and its consequential disruption to the social and economic activities, we have proactively taken a series of preventative measures, including:

• ensuring the health and safety of our employees



	• minimizing the impact of the pandemic on our operations 



We further confirm that notwithstanding these challenges, the Company was successful in maintaining stable operations. The Company’s management believes that COVID-19 pandemic, by itself, has had limited direct material effects on Company’s reported results for the year ended 30 December 2020. The Company’s management continues to monitor the situation closely as the situation is fluid and rapidly evolving. Management has concluded that critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions remain appropriate under the current circumstances.

xvii. We confirm that the Company’s financial statements’ basis of preparation is correct and new standards initially applicable from 1 January 2020, were applied as per the requirements of the individual standards. The financial statements have been prepared under the going concern basis. In assessing the appropriateness of the going concern assumption, the management has taken account of all relevant information covering the period not exceeding one year from financial position date.

xviii. Except as disclosed to you already in writing, there have been no communications from Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority “SAMA”, governmental representatives, General Authority of Zakat and Tax or others concerning investigations or allegations of noncompliance with laws and regulations, deficiencies in financial reporting practices or other matters that could have a material adverse effect on the financial statements. (IAS 8.30, 31)

xix. There are no other liabilities that are required to be recognised and no other contingent assets or contingent liabilities that are required to be disclosed in the financial statements in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, including liabilities or contingent liabilities arising from illegal or possible illegal acts.



xx. We confirm that the Company applied the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for finance lease receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, finance lease receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics. The Company follows a credit classification mechanism, primarily driven by day’s delinquency as a tool to manage the quality of credit risk of the lease portfolio. Further, the Company has categorized its lease receivables into four sub categories on the basis of similar credit risk characteristics. Exposures within each credit risk category are segmented by industrial classification and an ECL rate is calculated for each segment based on the delinquency status and actual credit loss experience over the past years. These rates are multiplied by scaler factors to reflect differences between economic conditions, current conditions and the Company’s view of economic conditions over the expected lives of the receivables. Scalar factors are based on the country specific risk and industry specific risk. We further confirm that the estimates made by the management are reasonable.



xxi. We specifically confirm that: 



· The disclosure related to leases are complete, adequate and fairly presented.



· The disclosure related to Zakat (note 12 of the financial statements) is adequately and fairly presented including the status of assessment, Zakat refund and basis of not providing provision for any additional demand with respect to previous years’ assessment.



· The disclosure for related party transactions and balances is complete, adequate and fairly presented.



· We acknowledge there are involvement of legal proceedings for recovery of 3 customers’ balances. Except these, all other customers’ balances are free from any legal proceeding for their recovery or any other matter. In our view, by considering our legal experts’ opinion, the aforementioned balances are recoverable in full. Further, we have commercial papers (promissory notes and cheques) as security against these receivables. Accordingly, the likelihood of succeeding legal proceedings are high and hence no further provisions are required in this matter. We have also assessed the net realisable value of assets based on an independent valuer and concluded that the net realisable value is approximate to carrying value of net investment in finance leases. 



· No other Board, Board sub-committees and shareholders meeting held during 2020, except: 



A. Board meeting – ______. 



B. Board Audit committee meeting:



1. ______

2. ______

3. ______

4. ______ 



C. Shari’a committee meeting:



1. For Quarter 1, 2019  –  _____

2. For Quarter 2, 2019  – ______

3. For Quarter 3, 2019  – ______

4. For Quarter 4, 2019  – ______



D. Shareholders annual general meeting -  ____



We acknowledge requirements of Company’s Articles are not complied with during 2020 relating to frequency of board meeting, which requires convening 4 board meeting in a year.



· There are no other board sub-committees other than board audit committee and shari’a committee.



· We confirm that advance of SAR 140,625 paid to 3i for ERP implementation project is realisable as at 31 December 2020.



· We confirm that additional equity contribution as 31 December 2020 amounting to SAR 90,644,283 is adequately disclosed.



· We confirm that the Company has classified the investment as fair value through other comprehensive Income (FVOCI). Further we confirm that the fair value of the investment is approximates the cost of investment.



· We confirm that the accounting of SAMA financial assistance received has been accounted as per the requirements of IAS 20. The Company has used 4% for calculating the present value of SAMA deposits received. We confirm that the rate used (4%) is based on applicable external borrowing rate and is in line with the requirement of IFRS.



· We confirm that, the Company has identified 40 contracts who opted for the SAMA deferred payment program. All these 40 contracts have been approved by SAMA as eligible contracts.



We further confirm that the accounting impact due to modification of lease contracts have been assessed as per the requirements of IFRS 9 as modification in terms of arrangement. The impact due to change in modification for eligible lease contracts has an additional expense of SR 7 million recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The impact of loss on account of lease modification has been offset with the gain on account of SAMA deposits received. Accordingly, the net loss on account of participation to SAMA deferred payment program has been presented in the statement of profit or loss amounting to SR 4.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2020.



 



We hereby confirm that the above representations are made by us on the basis of enquiries with various stakeholders (including but not limited to shareholders, key management personnel including directors and employees) having relevant knowledge, skillset and experience (and, where appropriate, by inspection of supporting documentation) sufficient to satisfy ourselves that we can authoritatively, properly and appropriately make each of the above representations to you







Yours truly, 





		Salah AlMajthoob

		

		

		

		Shahid Riazi



		CEO

		

		

		

		Chief Financial Officer







Enclosed:

Appendix 2: Unadjusted misstatements

Appendix 2: Definitions




Appendix 1 



Unadjusted misstatements

		 

		Assets

		Liabilities

		Equity

		Income statement



		 

		Dr (Cr)

		Dr (Cr)

		Dr (Cr)

		Dr (Cr)



		 

		SAR



		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		Salaries and other employee related expenses

		 

		 

		 

		     (156,062)



		Accrued expenses and other liabilities

		 

		           156,062 

		 

		 



		To reverse the leave provision recorded in excess of the policy

		 

		 

		 

		 



		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		Retained earnings

		 

		 

		  339,976 

		 



		Net investment in finance leases

		            (339,976)

		 

		 

		 



		To adjust for the impact of spreading admin fee income over the contract period

		 

		 

		 

		 



		 

		 

		 

		 

		 



		Total

		            (339,976)

		           156,062 

		  339,976 

		     (156,062)





















































Appendix 2 



Definitions

The following definitions assume that IFRSs are the applicable financial reporting framework. 

Financial Statements

IAS 1.10 states that “a complete set of financial statements comprises:

a) a statement of financial position as at the end of the period;

b) a statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the period;

c) a statement of changes in equity for the period;

d) a statement of cash flows for the period;

e) notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information;

ea)   comparative information in respect of the preceding period as specified in paragraphs 38 and 38A; and

f) a statement of financial position as at the beginning of the preceding period when an entity applies an accounting policy retrospectively or makes a retrospective restatement of items in its financial statements, or when it reclassifies items in its financial statements in accordance with paragraphs 40A–40D.

An entity may use titles for the statements other than those used in this Standard.  For example, an entity may use the title ‘statement of comprehensive income' instead of 'statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income’.”

Material Matters

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.  

IAS 1.7 and IAS 8.5 state the following:

“Material omissions or misstatements of items are material if they could, individually or collectively, influence the economic decisions that users make on the basis of the financial statements.  Materiality depends on the size and nature of the omission or misstatement judged in the surrounding circumstances.  The size or nature of the item, or a combination of both, could be the determining factor.”

[ISA 580.A14 states that the auditor may consider communicating to management a threshold for the purposes of the requested written representations, to the extent that these refer to material matters or misstatements.  Engagement teams may set out such information here, if considered appropriate.]  

Fraud

Fraudulent financial reporting involves intentional misstatements including omissions of amounts or disclosures in financial statements to deceive financial statement users.  (ISA 240.A2)

Misappropriation of assets involves the theft of an entity’s assets.  It is often accompanied by false or misleading records or documents in order to conceal the fact that the assets are missing or have been pledged without proper authorisation.  (ISA 240.A5)

Error

An error is an unintentional misstatement in financial statements, including the omission of an amount or a disclosure.  (IFAC Glossary of Terms).

Prior period errors are omissions from, and misstatements in, the entity’s financial statements for one or more prior periods arising from a failure to use, or misuse of, reliable information that:

a) was available when financial statements for those periods were authorised for issue; and

b) could reasonably be expected to have been obtained and taken into account in the preparation and presentation of those financial statements.

Such errors include the effects of mathematical mistakes, mistakes in applying accounting policies, oversights or misinterpretations of facts, and fraud.  (IAS 8.5)

Management

For the purposes of this letter, references to “management” should be read as “management and, where appropriate, those charged with governance”.  (ISA 580.8)

Related Party and Related Party Transaction

Related party 

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its financial statements (referred to in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures as the “reporting entity”).

a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to a reporting entity if that person:

i) has control or joint control over the reporting entity;

ii) has significant influence over the reporting entity; or

iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the reporting entity.

b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:

i) The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity.  If the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the reporting entity.

vi) The entity is controlled, or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity). 

viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel services to the reporting entity or to the parent of the reporting entity.

[In recognition of the circumstances arising in certain countries whereby governments hold large investments in entities, and furthermore, as a result of government “bail-outs” and financial support provided to various entities, resulting from the economic downturn, revised IAS 24.25 states the following, in respect of government-related entities.]

A reporting entity is exempt from the disclosure requirements of IAS 24.18 in relation to related party transactions and outstanding balances, including commitments, with:

a) a government that has control or joint control of, or significant influence over, the reporting entity; and

b) another entity that is a related party because the same government has control or joint control of or significant influence over, both the reporting entity and the other entity.

Related party transaction - A transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting entity and a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged. (IAS 24.9)
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		Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of Gulf Lifting Financial Leasing Company (A Closed Joint Stock Company)



		Opinion		



		We have audited the financial statements of Gulf Lifting Financial Leasing Company (“the Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.



In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2020, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements issued by the Saudi Organization for Certified Public Accountants (SOCPA).



		Basis for Opinion



		We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the professional code of conduct and ethics that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.



		Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements



		Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements issued by SOCPA, the applicable requirements of the Regulations for Companies, Company’s Articles of Association and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

[bookmark: _GoBack]Those charged with governance, the Board of Directors, are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.



		Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements



		Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
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		Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of Gulf Lifting Financial Leasing Company (A Closed Joint Stock Company) (continued)



		Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)



		‘Reasonable assurance’ is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.



		As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

· Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

· Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

· Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

· Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, then we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

· Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.



		We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit of Gulf Lifting Financial Leasing Company (“the Company”).







For KPMG Al Fozan & Partners

Certified Public Accountants 
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